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Corporate Profile

Quaid-e-Azam Solar Power (Pvt.) Limited is a public-sector for profit company
established by the Government of the Punjab. The company has been established for
the setting up of renewable energy projects in general and Solar Energy Power
Projects in particular. Quaid-e-Azam Solar Power (Pvt.) Limited is the first ever utility
scale solar power plant in the country. It aims to initiate solar energy programs and
research projects with respect to Solar Energy power generation plants. The company
achieved Commercial Operations Date ('COD’) on July 15, 2015. National Electric
Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA") has granted generation license to the company
which is valid till December 30, 2039. Plant is under continuous successful operation
for more than 5.5 years. Power Plant has exceeded NEPRA Generation Targets
consistently.

QASP power plant is first and only Solar Power Plant of Pakistan to achieve
registration with CDM-UNFCCC in 2018. Contributing towards SDG No. 7
(Affordable and Clean Energy) and Tons of CO2 being reduced annually.



Mission Statement

Quaid-e-Azam Solar aims to take on the responsibility of bridging the gap between
electricity demand and supply through clean renewable sources. Our mission is to
achieve the role of producing electricity by utilizing renewable solar energy and fulfill
the expectations of our employees, consumers and shareholders. Quaid-e-Azam
Solar Power (Pvt.) Limited aspires to become Pakistan’s pioneering organization by
taking the first major step towards the new generation of sustainable development.

Vision Statement

Our vision is to witness our nation free from the grappling energy crisis it is facing at
the moment.



Core Values

Quaid e Azam Solar Power (Private) Limited is committed to be an ethical and a responsible
member of the business communities in which it operates. The Company always endeavours
to ensure that highest standards of honesty, integrity and ethics are maintained.

Respect and Integrity

Respect is a key requirement for a healthy work environment.

Integrity means truthfulness and sincerity, acting with honesty behaving
professionally and righteously.

Passion

Working hard for something we love is called passion.

Ownership

When a team takes ownership of its problems, the problem gets solved. It is true on
the battlefield, it is true in business, and it is true in life

Work-Life Balance

You will never be truly satisfied by work until you are satisfied by life

Excellence

Excellence is not a skill, it’s an attitude!!
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-~ Quaid-e-Azam Solar Power (Pvt) Limited

Cruatidv= Aeam Sular Power (Pyi) Limited

Ref: ( M ¢-23 230}05’.,0 | October 05, 2023

To:

I.  Dr. Naeem Rauf - Secretary Energy Member/Shareholder
2. Mr. Iftikhar Ali Sahoo - Chairman P&D Board Member/Shareholder
3. Mr. Mujahid Sherdil - Secretary Finance Member/Shareholder
4. Mr. Ehsan Bhutta - Secretary Industries Member/Shareholder

SUBIJECT: NOTICE OF 10" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) OF QASPL

Respected Members,

This is to inform that the 10" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Quaid-e-Azam Solar Power (Pvt)
Limited (QASPL) is scheduled to be held on Thursday, October 26, 2023 at 3:00 p.m. in the Committee
Room of QASPL Head Office located at 3" Floor, 83-A, E-1, Main Boulevard, Gulberg - I1I, Lahore, as per the
enclosed Agenda and Working Papers.

2 All respected Members/Shareholders are requested to kindly make it convenient to attend the Meeting
on the scheduled date and time. The members who cannot travel/attend the meeting in person may please join
through following Zoom video-link:

Topic: 10" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of QASPL (26-10-2023)
Zoom Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3560223401
Meeting ID: 356 022 3401

Passcode: 261023
(SALMAN JA é\’SHMU
Chief Finangial Officer/
Company Secretary
cc:

i) Chief Executive Officer, QASPL.

i) PS to Secretary Energy

iii) M/s BDO Ibrahim & Co. (Chartered Accountants)
iv) All concerned Officers at QASPL.

v) Office Copy.

3 Floor, 83-A, E/1, Main Boulevard, Gulberg lll, Lahore.
PH:042-35332261
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors of Quaid-e-Azam Solar Power (Pvt.) Limited (“the Company™) is pleased
to present the Audited Financial Statements together with the Auditors’ Report thereon for the
year ended June 30, 2023.

PRINCIPLES ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

The principal activity of the Company is to build, own, operate and maintain a solar power
plant having a total capacity of 100 MW in Lal Sohanra, Cholistan, Bahawalpur (the main
business unit of the Company). The Company continues to sell the electrical energy produced

from its power plant to its single customer, Central Power Purchasing Agency (Guarantee)
Limited (CPPA-G).

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

160,961,253 units were produced during the year with total production since Commercial
Operations Date (COD) being 1,297,182,488 units. Consequently, total sales booked during
the year were Rs. 4,796.36 million, an increase of 20.14% as compared with the previous year.
The corresponding cost of sales increased by 10.55% to Rs. 1,037.92 million, resulting is a
gross profit of Rs. 3,758.45 million, an increase of 23.09%.

The operating profit and profit before tax of QASPL increased by 35.39% and 39.77%,
respectively amounting to Rs. 4,120.89 and Rs. 3,277.72 million. During the FY 2021-22, the
Company initiated six development schemes funded through the Punjab Annual Development
Plan (ADP) out of which four schemes were completed as of 30"™ June 2023. Since these
schemes were fully funded, they had no financial impact on the financial statements of QASPL
during the year.

Overall, the net profit after tax of QASPL for the Financial Year 2022-23 increased by 35.70%,
as compared to last year, to Rs. 2,988.60 million. Current year’s head-wise comparison with
last year along with detail of major expenses is tabulated below:

SUMMARY - CURRENT YEAR COMPARISON WITH LAST YEAR
Destimtion 2022-23 | 2021-22 | VARIANCE
RUPEES (M) %
Sales 4,796.36 | 3,992.26 |  804.10 20.14
Cost of Sales (1,037.92) | (938.84) |  (99.08) (10.55)
 Gross Profit 3,758.45 | 3,053.43| 705.02 23.09




Admin expenses (159.98) | (131.83) (28.15) (21.35)
Corporate social responsibilities @.12) (434) 022 512
expenses

Other Charges (117.32) (50.49) (66.83) (132.38)
Other Income 643.86 176.92 466.93 263.92
Operating Profit 4,120.89 | 3,043.70 | 1,077.19 35.39
Amortization of ADP project funds 200.56 663.96 - -
Expenses incurred during the year (200.56) | (663.96) - -
Finance Cost (843.17) | (698.55) | (144.62) (20.70)
Profit before Tax 3,277.72 | 2,345.15 932.58 39.77
Taxation (289.13) | (142.81) | (146.32) (102.46)
Profit after Tax 2,988.60 | 2,202.34 786.26 35.70
Earning per share 7.84 5.78 2.06 35.64
Capital expenditure (410.30) | (255.20) | (155.10) (60.77)

Almost 91% of the cost of sales comprises of Operation and Maintenance (O&M) payments
made to Contractor/Consultant and depreciation of plant and machinery. The remaining 9%
comprises of salaries and wages of site/technical staff, site security expenses, plant insurance
premium and other operational expenditures directly related to the running and maintenance of
the plant. No major variations were seen in the cost of sales as compared with the previous
year.

Administrative expenses, which relate to head office expenses and other costs incurred that are
not directly attributable to the production, increased from Rs. 131.83 million to Rs. 159.98
million during the year. Salaries and wages decreased by Rs. 7.23 million due to vacancy of
four key positions during the year i.e., the Chief Internal Auditor (since October 2022),
Company Secretary (since January 2023), Manager Finance (since April 2022) and Manager
Procurement (since January 2023). An increase in legal and professional cost was seen due to
hiring of Legal Advisor and payment to UNFCCC for sale of Carbon Credit.

During the year ended 30" June 2023, foreign currency exchange loss of Rs. 54.52 million was
booked due to strengthening of the Dollar against the Pakistani Rupee; this relates to off-shore
payments and liabilities to foreign contractor and consultant. The remaining amount of other
charges include contributions against Worker’s Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) and
Workers’” Welfare Fund (WWF), while actual contributions made during the year amounted to
Rs. 117.26 million and Rs. 46.92 million towards WPPF and WWF respectively. In addition,
the Company provided for of Rs. 17.14 million in other charges for sharing of carbon credits
with CPPA, as per its Energy Purchase Agreement.

Other income significantly increased during the year from Rs. 176.93 million to Rs. 643.86
million (364% increase); this increase is both due to record collections from CPPA during the
year (Rs. 6.68 billion) and increase in mark-up from 12.25% to 19.50% during the year. In



addition, QASPL sold 94,669 carbon credits in the open market for Rs. 29.41 million during
the year; this amount was also recorded in other income.

During the year significant additions were made in operating fixed assets. Construction of guest
house at the plant site, solarization of the complex building and solarization of off-grid/poor-
grid villages under CSR initiatives were capitalized from Capital Work-in-Progress at Rs.
196.54 million, Rs. 10.93 million and Rs. 196.11 million respectively.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

QASPL also initiated some Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiatives during the
previous financial year; the projects initiated under CSR comprised of electrification of certain
off-grid/poor-grid villages through solarization. These plants were capitalized, on completion,
during the year at the cost Rs. 196.11 million as mentioned in the preceding section. Some
pictures from these projects are given below:

Another important social initiative taken by the management during the year was a plantation
drive undertaken at the plant site under which 5,000 plants were planted as part of the Clean
and Green Pakistan scheme.

DIVIDEND:
During the year, an amount of Rs. 2 billion was disbursed as dividends to shareholders. This
comprised of interim dividends of Rs. 1.5 billion and Rs. 500 million respectively for the FY



2021-22 and FY 2022-23. Total dividends disbursed since incorporation are at Rs. 4.7 billion
which is Rs. 0.9 billion more than the total equity injected by the Government of the Punjab at
the time of incorporation. In addition, the Company has earmarked an amount of Rs. 1 billion
in lieu of further dividend which would be disbursed in the second quarter of FY 2023-24.

ANNUAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN (ADP) SCHEMES:

On the request of the Energy Department, Government of the Punjab, the Company initiated
the execution of six ADP schemes during the previous year. The total cost of all six schemes
was Rs. 980 million out of which Rs. 373 million (2022: Rs. 609 million) was received in the
FY 2022-23. The total payment made during the year on these schemes amounted to Rs. 270
million. Detail of utilization is provided at Note-16 to the Financial Statements and briefs on
all six schemes is provided below:

1. Off-grid/Poor-grid village solarization program: This project was initiated in
Bahawalpur and Dera Ghazi Khan districts and aimed to install solar plants (total
capacity: 351 kW) for the provision of uninterrupted electricity to certain off-grid/poor-
grid villages selected through a third-party survey and feasibility report.

2. Converting three cities of the Punjab into solar smart cities: This project envisioned the
solarization of sixteen public buildings located in Multan, Mianwali and Gujranwala
(total capacity: 2300 kW). The project was completed during the year.

3. Distribution of 1-kW solar systems to poor population of Punjab based on BISP data:
Under this project, more than 400 poor families were to be provided a solar home
solution (1-kW each) from five districts of the Punjab i.e., Rajanpur, Dera Ghazi Khan,
Muzaffargarh, Bahawalpur and Multan. 196 system were handed over to the poor
families during the year.

4. Provision of electricity to communities using indigenous resources: The scope of this
project covered six districts of the Punjab i.e., Rajanpur, Rahim Yar Khan,
Muzaffargarh, Bahawalnagar and Multan where solar plants were to be installed in
various villages (total capacity: 600 kW). This included 6 sites of 100kW each. Out of
the total six sites, four sites (400kW) were completed during the year (3 sites in the
months of February 2023 and one in the month of May 2023); meanwhile, two sites
(Muzaffargarh and Bahawalnagar) are under process.

5. Solarization of tube wells in Punjab: This project aimed to solarize 27 tube wells being
used by farmers in five districts of the Punjab i.e., Rajanpur, Dera Ghazi Khan,
Bhakkar, Mianwali and Multan (total capacity: 332.1 kW). The project was completed
in the month of January 2023.

6. Solarization of Punjab Institute of Mental Health (PIMH): The project aimed to install
1-MW on-grid PV solar system on the Punjab Institute of Mental Health (PIMH); this
project was also completed during the year.




CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK:

As required by the Code of Corporate Governance for public sector companies, we are pleased
to report the following:

a)

b)

c)
d)

g)

The board has complied with the relevant principles of corporate governance, with the
following three exceptions:
i.  Two of our ex-officio directors are serving as members of the Board in
more than five public sector companies;
ii.  Performance evaluation of the members of the Board has not been
undertaken by the Government; and
iii.  Position of CIA is vacant and internal audit report for the FY 2022-23 is
therefore pending.
The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly
its state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.
Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.
Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of
financial statements and any changes in accounting policies have been disclosed in the
financial statements. The accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent
judgment.
Management has established and maintained sound system of internal control, which is
regularly reviewed and monitored by the management of the company.
Directors are appointed according to the directions of the Energy Department with the
approval of the Government of the Punjab. No remuneration has been paid to the Non-
Executive Directors (NEDs) except meeting fee.
International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been
followed in preparation of these financial statements and any departure there-from has
been adequately disclosed and explained.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS:

During the year 2022-23 the Company sold 161.25 GWh of electricity to Central Power
Purchasing Agency (Guarantee) Limited against benchmark energy 153.3 GWh. This
generation represented a capacity factor of 18.41% against NEPRA’s target of 17.5% with
overall commercial availability of 100%. The Company’s power plant is being maintained in
accordance with recommendations of the Original Equipment Manufacturer at the highest
internal standards. Moreover, during the year, the Company achieved 76.62% Annual
Performance Ratio (APR) against the benchmark APR of 73.63% and produced excess energy
0f 6,221.28 MWh units.

KEY OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL DATA OF THE LAST SIX YEARS:



COMPARATIVE OPERATIONAL & FINANCIAL DATA

FY 2022- FY FY FY 2019- | FY 2018- FY
Description 23 2021-22 | 2020-21 20 19 2017-18
RUPEES (M)

Units Sold GWh 160.96 163.68 165.75 165.05 164.47 162.29
Sales 4,796.36 | 3,992.26 | 3,570.84 | 4,33521 | 3,623.16 [ 2,920.10
Cost of Sales (1,037.92) | (938.84) | (893.56) [ (901.42) | (888.05) | (893.96)
Gross Profit 3,758.45 | 3,053.43 | 2,677.29 | 3,433.79 | 2,735.11 | 2,026.14
Admin expenses (159.98) | (131.83) (88.27) (80.59) (80.00) | (128.03)
Corporate social

responsibility expenses (*.12) (4.34) ) ) ) )
Other Income 643.86 176.92 354.31 367.97 150.61 174.95
Other Charges (117.32) (50.49) (88.49) (1.58) (12.42) (5.48)
profitheforeInterest & | 412189 | 3,043.70 | 285483 | 371959 | 2,793.30 | 2.067.58
Annual development plan

(ADP) project funds

Ampr‘uzaﬂon of ADP 200.56 663.96 ) ) ) )
project funds

Expenses incurred during

the year (200.56) | (663.96) - - - -
Finance Cost (843.17) | (698.55) | (713.05) | (1,235.82) | (1,065.52) | (893.46)
Profit before Tax 3,277.72 | 2,345.15 | 2,141.78 | 2,483.77 | 1,727.78 | 1,174.12
Taxation (289.13) | (142.81) | (137.99) (16.30) 58.34 (35.42)
Profit after Tax 2,988.60 | 2,202.34 | 2,003.80 [ 2,467.47 | 1,786.12 | 1,138.70
Capital expenditure (410.30) | (255.20) (17.20) (27.92) (1.54) (17.63)
Earning per share 7.84 5.78 5.26 6.48 4.69 2.99

Profit after Tax
3,500.00 2,988.60
3,000.00
2,467.47
2,500.00 2,202.34
2,003.80

2,000.00 1,786.12

1,500.00 1,138.70
1,000.00

500.00
2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18




KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS:

The performance of QASPL remained outstanding during the year in managing the contractors,
consultants and lenders. The Company worked hard to cut down its costs, actively pursued its
outstanding matters with relevant stakeholders, raised all invoices in a timely manner and made
its loan/principal repayments on schedule. The Company managed to make the best possible
use of its human resource and stands out as one of the top energy companies providing
electricity to its consumers at affordable costs.

The Company has maintained a healthy Current Ratio of 3.35:1 as of 30" June 2023 with an
equally impressive Debt to Equity ratio and Debt Service Ratio of 20:80 and 2.10 respectively
whereas Return on Equity is maintained at 21%.

PACRA CREDIT RATING:

Credit rating of the Company was reassessed by Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA)
which reaffirmed QASPL’s rating at ‘AA/A-1+" (Double A /A-One Plus), while the outlook
on the assigned rating is ‘Stable.” This is a sign of high credit quality, strong protection factors
and modest risk, which can be susceptible to slight variations from time to time due to adverse
economic conditions.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The composition of the Board of Directors as at 30" June, 2023 was as follows:
1. Mr. Zaheer Ahmed Ghanghro (Chairman)
2. Chairman, Planning and Development Board, Punjab (Member)
3. Secretary Energy, Government of the Punjab (Member)
4. Secretary Finance, Government of the Punjab (Member)
5. Secretary Industries, Government of the Punjab (Member)
6. Mr. M. Ali Latif (Member)
7. Mr. Kamran Khurshid (Member)
8. Mr. Khwaja Khawar Rashid (Member)
9. Engr. Prof. Dr. Suhail Aftab Qureshi (Member)
10. Mr. Ahmed Shahzeb Malik (Member)
11. Ms. Lubna Pathan (Member)

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD:
During the year, ten (10) meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance of the
Directors was as follows:

Sr. No. of
4 Name Category Meetings
Attended
1 | Mr. Zaheer Ahmed Ghanghro Chairman 10
2 | Chairman, Planning and Development Department Director 08
3 | Chairman, Punjab Board of Investment & Trade Director 03




4 | Secretary Energy, Government of the Punjab Director 10
5 | Secretary Finance, Government of the Punjab Director 05
6 | Secretary Industries, Government of the Punjab Director 08
7 | Mr. M. Ali Latif Director 06
8 | Mr. Kamran Khurshid Director 10
9 | Mr. Khwaja Khawar Rashid Director 08
10 | Engr. Prof. Dr. Suhail Aftab Qureshi Director 10
11 | Mr. Ahmed Shahzeb Malik Director 10
12 | Ms. Lubna Pathan Director 10

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING:
During the year, seven (07) meetings of the Audit Committee were conducted. Attendance of
meetings is as follows:

Meetings

Sr. # Name Category Attended
1 Mr. M. Ali Latif Convener 07
2 Secretary Energy, Government of the Punjab Director 06
3 Secretary Finance, Government of the Punjab Director 04
4 Mr. Ahmad Shahzeb Malik Director 07
5 Khawaja Khawar Rashid Director 07

FINANCE AND PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE MEETING:
During the year, eight (08) meetings of the Finance and Procurement Committee were
conducted. Attendance of meetings is as follows:

Meetings
Sr. # Name Category Attended
1| Mr. Zaheer Ahmed Ghanghro Convener 08
2 | Secretary Energy, Government of the Punjab Director 08
3 | Secretary Finance, Government of the Punjab Director -




4 | Prof. Dr. Suhail Aftab Qureshi Director 08
5 Mr. Ahmad Shahzeb Malik Director 08
6 Mr. Kamran Khursheed Director 08

HUMAN RESOURCE (HR) COMMITTEE MEETING:
During the year, eight (08) meetings of the HR Committee were conducted. Attendance of
meetings is as follows:

Meetings

Sr. # Name Category Attended
1| Prof. Dr. Suhail Aftab Qureshi Chairman 08
2 | Secretary Energy, Government of the Punjab Director 08
3 | Secretary Industries, Government of the Punjab Director 08
4 | Mr. Ahmad Shahzeb Malik Director 08
5 | Mr. Kamran Khursheed Director 07

CSR COMMITTEE MEETING:
During the year, two (02) meetings of the CSR Committee were conducted. Attendance of
meetings is as follows:

Meetings
Sr. # Name Category Attended
1| Mr. Zaheer Ahmed Ghanghro Convener 02
2 | Secretary Energy, Government of the Punjab Director 02
3 | Secretary Finance, Government of the Punjab Director -
4 | Prof. Dr. Suhail Aftab Qureshi Director 02
5 | Mr. Ahmad Shahzeb Malik Director 02
6 | Mr. Kamran Khursheed Director 02

GRIEVANCE REDRESSAL COMMITTEE MEETING:
During the year, one (01) meeting of the Grievance Redressal Committee was conducted.
Attendance of meeting is as follows:F

Meetings

Sr. # Name Category Atten deg d
1| Mr. Zaheer Ahmed Ghanghro Convener 01
2 | Secretary Energy, Government of the Punjab Director 01
3 | Mr. Kamran Khursheed Director 01

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING:
During the year, one (02) meetings of the Risk Management Committee were conducted.
Attendance of meeting is as follows:



Meetings
Sr. # Name Category Attended
1| Mr. Kamran Khursheed Convener 02
Secretary Energy, Government of the Punjab Director 02
3 | Ms. Lubna Pathan Director 02
AUDITORS:

The existing auditors of the Company BDO Ebrahim (Chartered Accountants), in their
independent auditor’s report on the financial statements of the Company for the year have
expressed an unqualified opinion on the state of affairs of the Company. The Auditors shall
retire on the conclusion of 10" Annual General Meeting. Being eligible, they have offered
themselves for re-appointment as auditors of the Company for the next financial year. The
Board of Directors recommend the appointment of BDO Ebrahim (Chartered Accountants), as
auditors of the Company for the next year as recommended by the Audit Committee.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING:
100% shares are owned by Energy Department, Govt. of Punjab.

APPRECIATION:

We take this opportunity to thank the employees of the Company and other stakeholders for
making this one of the most successful years for the Company.

On Behalf of the Board
Mr. Muhammad Badar-ul-Munir Mr. Zaheer Ahmad Ghanghro
Chief Executive Officer Chairman Board of Directors

Lahore:




Financial Highlights

Finnacial HighLights (Rs. in Billion)

35.000
30.000 28.742
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20.000

14.992
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11.137

10.000 7.520
5.000 3.809 ‘io 3.617

Total Total Net Total Dividend BOP Debt DebtPaid Remaining

revenue Profit Equity paid Debt
YEAR AT A GLANCE

Gross Margin % 78 76
Net Margin % 62 55
Current Ratio X 3.35 4.04
Gearing Ratio X 0.26 0.39
Debt to Equity Ratio % 20:80 28:72
Debt servicing coverage Ratio X 2.10 1.51
Return on Equity % 21 17
EBITDA to Sales % 98 90




Key Operating and Financial Data of the Last Eight Operational Years

Financial Year

Ending June, 30 2023 2022 | 2021 | 2020 | 2019 | 2018 | 2017 | 2016
Turnover 4607 | 3676| 3571 | 4335| 3,623| 2920| 3,053| 2956
[
- (@]
Net Profit / = 2089 | 2202 | 2004| 2467| 1786| 1.139| 1.390| 1,015
Loss =
Assets > 18.914 | 18.869 | 18,130 | 17,552 | 15,725 | 15,504 | 15,443 | 16,744
(nd
Dividends 2,000 500 | - ; ; 600 | 700| 900
Rs. in
EPS 784| 578| 520| 648| 469| 299| 365| 267
Thousand
Net Out Put | (Ghw) 160.96 | 164.8| 165.8 | 165.05 | 164.38 | 162.22 | 160.56 | 153.88
Eeart';grma”"e % 76.62 | 75.95| 75.64| 76.76 | 76.27| 76.25| 7459 | 75.25
Capacity % 1841 | 18.69| 18.89| 1884 | 18.77| 1852 | 18.25| 1757
Factor
Availability % 996| 999| 999| 999| 999| 999| 99.9| 99.9




Operational Highlights
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Fax: +92 42 3571 7351 Askari Corporate Tower,
www.bdo.com.pk 75/76 D-1, Main Boulevard

Gulberg Ill, Lahore-54660
Pakistan.

REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE PUBLIC
SECTOR COMPANIES (CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) RULES, 2013

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the
Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 (the “Rules”) for the year ended June
30, 2023 prepared by the Board of Directors of QUAID-E-AZAM SOLAR POWER (PRIVATE) LIMITED
(QASPL) (the “Company”) to comply with the provisions of the Rules.

The responsibility for compliance with the Rules is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified,
whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the
provisions of the Rules and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Rules. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel
and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Rules.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
control, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Rules requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval its
related party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to
those that prevail in arm’s length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm’s
length price and recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are
only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of
the related party:transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the related party
transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material
respects, with the best practices contained in the Rules as applicable to the Company for the year
ended June 30, 2023.

LAHORE .
(00 Rhser bawr Ay
paTep: 0 & OCT 2023 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Engagement Partner: Muhammad Imran
UDIN: CR202310131siR5CvCSj /ﬂbi)

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.



STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE
PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES (CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) RULES, 2013

Name of Company

Quaid-e-Azam Solar Power (Private) Limited

Name of Department

Energy Department, Government of Punjab

For the year ended

June 30, 2023

This statement is being presented to comply with the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance)
Rules, 2013 (hereinafter called “the Rules”) issued for the purpose of establishing a framework of good
governance, whereby a public sector company is managed in compliance with the best practices of

public sector governance.

The company has complied with the provisions of the Rules in the following manner:

Y N
Sr.
N Provisions of the Rules Rule No.| Tick the Remarks
o.
relevant box
1. [The independent directors meet the criteria of independence, as 2(d) 2
defined under the Rules.
2. [The Board has at least one third of its total members as independent
directors. At present the Board includes:
Category Name Date of Joining
o Zaheer Ahmed Ghanghro July 11, 2019
P Khawaja Khawar Rashid july 11, 2019
=
S 3 Muhammad Ali Latif July 11, 2019
& T fsuhail Aftab Qureshi July 11, 2019
3
o a December 10,
E o Kamran Khursheed 2020
g = . December 10, 3(2) v
%’- Ahmed Shahzeb Malik 2020
° Lubna Pathan July 11, 2019
Executive September 14,
. Muhammad Badar ul Munir 2821
Director
S 3 g [ecretary, Energy Deptt. July 11, 2019
a g
E' % = & [ecretary, Finance Deptt. July 11, 2019
g 9 % 3 [Chairman P&D Board, P&D Deptt Huly 11, 2019
a2 g 3 [Secretary, Industries Deptt. Uuly 11, 2019
? Chairman, PBIT uly 11, 2019
(All the independent directors are also Non-Executive Directors)
3. [The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a directorj  3(5) The matter is already

on more than five public sector companies and listed companies!
simultaneously, except their subsidiaries.

(Govt.

in the notice of th
Board.

The Ex-Officij
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Representatives)

directors are
nominated by
Government of the
Punjab and there is
no role of the QA
Solar Board or its
Management to
nominate  ex-officio
directors. Due to
resource constraint as
well importance of
some  departments,
such as Finance, P&D
fand Industries|
Departments etc;
Government is bound
to nominate the
Heads/Secretaries of
such departments to
serve and give their
technical input on
various Board  of]
Public Sector]
Companies. That is
the reason, such|
departments  having
directorships of more
than five (5) number

lof companies.

The appointing authorities have applied the fit and proper criteria given
in the Annexure to the Rules in making nominations of the persons for
election as board members under the provisions of the Act.

3(6)

The chairman of the Board is working separately from the Chief|
Executive of the Company.

4(1)

The Chairman has been elected by the Board of Directors except where|
the Chairman of the Board has been appointed by the Government.

4(4)

The Board has evaluated the candidates for the position of the chief]
executive on the basis of the fit and proper criteria as well as the
jguidelines specified by the Commission.

5(2)

(a) The company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” to ensure that
professional standards and corporate values are in place.

(b) The Board has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies

and procedures, including posting the same on the company’s website.
(www.qasolar.com)

(c) The Board has set in place adequate systems and controls for the

identification and redressal of grievances arising from unethical

5(4)
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practices. |

The Board has established a system of sound internal control, to ensure|
compliance with the fundamental principles of probity and propriety;
objectivity, integrity and honesty; and relationship with the
stakeholders, in the manner prescribed in the Rules.

5(5)

10.

The Board has developed and enforced an appropriate conflict of
interest policy to lay down circumstances or considerations when a

and the procedure for disclosing such interest.

person may be deemed to have actual or potential conflict of interests, 5(3)(b)(ii)

1.

The Board has developed and implemented a policy on anti-corruption to
minimize actual or perceived corruption in the company.

5(3)(b)(vi)

12.

The Board has ensured equality of opportunity by establishing open and

conditions of service.

fair procedures for making appointments and for determining terms and5(5)(c) (ii)

13.

The Board has ensured compliance with the law as well as the

tender regulations, and purchasing and technical standards, when
dealing with suppliers of goods and services.

company’s internal rules and procedures relating to public procurement,|5(5)(c)(iii)

14.

The board has developed a vision or mission statement and corporate
strategy of the company.

5(6)

15;

The Board developed significant policies of the company. A complete|
record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates, on
which they were approved or amended, has been maintained.

5(7)

16.

The board has quantified the outlay of any action in respect of any
service delivered or goods sold by the Company as a public service
obligation, and has submitted its request for appropriate compensation
to the Government for consideration.

5(8)

N/A

17.

The Board has ensured compliance with the policy directions
requirements received from the Government.

5(11)

18.

ia)The Board has met at-least four time during the year
b) Written notices of the Board meeting along with Agenda and working
papers were circulated at-least seven days before the meetings

circulated.

6(1), 6(2)
c) The minutes of the meeting were appropriately recorded and and 6(3)

19.

Chairman and Chief Executive shall be undertaken annually by the
Government for which the Government shall enter into performance
contract with each member of the Board at the time of appointment.

The Board has monitored and assessed the performance of senior
management on annual basis and held them accountable for
accomplishing objective and goals and key performance indicators set|
for this purpose.

The Performance evaluation of the members of the Board, including the 8(1) and

8(2)

Performance

evaluation report of]
the directors have
been sent by QASPL to
Energy  Department
dated 06" July 2023
for approval of the
Government.

20.

The board has reviewed and approved the related party transactions
placed before it after recommendations of the audit committee. A party,
wise record of transactions entered into with the related parties during
the year has been maintained.

i

(a)The Board has approved the profit and loss account for, and balance
sheet as at the end of, the first, second and third quarter of the year as
well as the financial year end.

(b) The Board has placed the annual financial statements on the
company’s website.

10

22.

All the Board members underwent an orientation course arranged by the
company to apprise them of the material developments and information
as specified in the Rules.

"

23.

(@) The Board has formed the requisite committees, as specified in
the Rules.

12
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(b) The committees were provided with written term of reference
defining their duties, authority and composition.

(c) The minutes of the meetings of the committees were circulated to
all the Board members.

(d) The committees were chaired by the following non-executive

directors:
Committee No. of members Name of Chair
Audit Committee 5 Muhammad Ali Latif
Risk Management :
Commiltiee 3 Kamran Kurshid
Human Resource 5 Engr. Prof. Dr. Sohail
Committee Aftab Qureshi
Finance & Procurement 6 Zaheer Ahmed
Committee Ghanghro
_— ; Zaheer Ahmed
Nomination Committee 3 Ghanghro
Grievance Redressal 3 Zaheer Ahmed
Committee Ghanghro
; Zaheer Ahmed
CSR Committee 6 Ghanghro

24. [The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer,| 13 The Company
Company Secretary and Chief Internal Auditor, by whatever name| Secretary and CFO is
called, with their remuneration and terms and conditions of| the same person.
employment.

25. |The Chief Financial Officer and the Company secretary have requisite 14
qualification prescribed in the Rules.

26. |The company has adopted International Financial Reporting Standards| 16
notified by the Commission in terms of sub-section (1) of section 225 of|
the Act.

27. [The directors’ report for this year has been prepared in compliance with| 17
the requirements of the Act and the Rules and fully describes the salient]
matters required to be disclosed.

28. The directors, CEO and executives, or their relatives, are not directly orf 18
indirectly, concerned or interested in any contract or arrangements
lentered into by or on behalf of the company except those disclosed to
the company.

29. (@) A formal and transparent procedure for fixing the remuneration
packages of individual directors has been set in place and no directors is 19
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

(b) The annual report of the company contains criteria and details of|
remuneration of each director.

30. [The financial statements of the company were duly endorsed by the
chief executive and chief financial officer before consideration and| 20
approval of the audit committee and the Board.

31. [The Board has formed an audit committee, with defined and written
terms of reference, and having the following members: 21(1) and
Name of the member |Category Professional @

Background
E&i fMuhammad a Independent Chartered Accountant
:\Mh;.l”f\hmad Shalyzeh Independent Financial Consultant
IMr. Khawaja Khawar ;
Rashid Independent Business
Secretary Energy Ex-Officio Government Service
Secretary Finance Ex-Officio Government Service
IThe chief executive and chairman of the Board are not members of the
faudit committee.
32 | a) The Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Internal auditors, and a 21(3)
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representative of the external auditors attended all meeting of]
the Audit Committee at which issue relating to accounts and
audit were discussed. 7
b) The Audit Committee met the external auditors, at-least once g
year, without the presence of Chief Financial Officer, the Chief|
Internal Auditors and other executives.
¢) The audit Committee met the chief internal auditors and other v/
members of the internal audit function, at-least once a year,
without the presence of chief financial officer and the externall
auditors.
33. a) The Board has set up an effective internal audit function, which 22 v b) The matter is
has an audit charter, duly approved by the audit committee. already in the notice
b) The chief internal auditor has requisite qualification and of the Board that
experienced prescribed in the Rules. position of  chief|
c) The internal audit reports have been provided to the External internal auditor s
auditors for their review. vacant since October
2022 and due to ban
~ ©n new hirings since
January 2023 internal
udit reports are
pending.
c) Internal  audit]
function for the FY|
Y [022-23 has since
been outs sourced and
Procurement process
has recently been
completed. All
pending reports will
be issued in the CFY]
2023-24.
34. [The external auditors of the company have confirmed that the firm and | 23(4)
ll its partners are in compliance with International Federation of
ccountants (IFAC) guidelines on Code of Ethics as applicable in v
Pakistan.
35. !The auditors have confirmed that they have observed applicable| 23(5)
guidelines issued by IFCA with regard to provision of non-audit services. v
Muhammad Badar Ul Munir Zaheer A. Ghaghroo
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHAIRMAN
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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SCHEDULE I
See Paragraph 2(3)

Explanation for Non-Compliance with the
Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

We confirm that all other material requirements envisaged in the Rules have been complied with
except for the following, toward which reasonable progress is being made by the company to seek
compliance by the end of next accounting year:

Sr. Rule/Sub-  [Reason for Non-Compliance Future course of action
No. Rule No.

1 3(5) The matter is already in the notice offThe matter is already in the
the Board.. The Ex_—Officio (Govt.notice of the Board. The company
Representatives) directors arewill try to ensure compliance off

nominated by Government of the
Punjab and there is no role of the QA
Solar Board or its Management to
nominate ex-officio directors. Due to
resource constraint as well importance;
of some departments, such as Finance,
P&D and Industries Departments etc;
Government is bound to nominate the|
Heads/Secretaries of such departments
to serve and give their technical input
on various Board of Public Sector
Companies. That is the reason, such
departments having directorships of]
more than five (5) number off
companies.

2 8 (1) The Govt was requested by QASPL toThe company will follow up with

initiate the process of performancegpe parent department to resolve
evaluation of the board, however, thel, . ...

Govt replied that a criteria is being
devised in this regard and to be
finalized soon. However, it has not
been completed yet.

3 22 Position of CIA is vacant since October 2022Vacancy will be filled after the

and due to ban on new hirings since January o it

2023, the post is still vacant. ban is lifted. ) ) .
Internal  audit  function s

Due to vacant position of CIA since Octoberjoutsourced for the financial year

2022, internal audit reports are pending. 2022-23, hiring process is

complete. Reports will be issued

in the current financial year 2023-

this provision of the rules in
future.

24. A
Muhammad Badar Ul Munir Zaheer A. Ghaghroo
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHAIRMAN

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Page - 6



Tel: +92 42 3587 5707-10 Office No. 4, 6th Floor,
Fax: +92 42 3571 7351 Askari Corporate Tower,
www.bdo.com.pk 75/76 D-1, Main Boulevard

Gulberg Ill, Lahore-54660
Pakistan.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF QUAID-E-AZAM SOLAR POWER (PRIVATE)
LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of QUAID-E-AZAM SOLAR POWER (PRIVATE) LIMTED
(the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2023, and the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows, the
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we
have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income,
the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2023 and of the
profit and other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
(the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the directors’ report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

(300
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements
of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

s  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern. Boo
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» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) in our opinion, no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of
1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Muhammad Imran.

LAHORE. | “ | ﬁvo aa,dmmm

[ |

pateo: ) & OCT 2023 BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

UDIN: AR202310131BHnbiJrwé BDD
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QUAID-E-AZAM SOLAR POWER (PRIVATE) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assels
Capital work in progress

Righl-of-nze assets

Intangible assets

Long term deposits

CURRENT ASSETS
Trade debts
Contract nsscts
Short term loans and advances
short e deposits and prepavments
Cither recepvables

Receivable from Govemment of Punjab against
Annual Development Program (ADP) projects

Cazh and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized share capital

Issued, subsaribed and paid up share capital
Share deposit money
Revenie reserve - Unappropriated profit
Corporate social responsibilily reserves
TOTAL EQUITY
MON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lang term financing
Deferved habilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Retentions
Trade and other payables
Accrued finance cost
Prowision for laxation
Currvent portion of long term financing

TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Mote

L - R

=

12
I3
|4
I3

L6
17

P81

182

20
21

Z21
23
24
25
26

27

The annexed notes from | to 53 form an integral part of these financial statemients.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

023 2022
menennne{ Rupees in 0V j——-—
9,794 D68 0058044
- 243,280
746 790
32 @8
401 401
0,79 167 10,202,619
3.113.851 3,735,232
1,374,353 1,030,602
B304 11,221
5,949 6,560
267,829 291.3%4
11,952 69,112
43115825 3,522,443
0,118,259 8,666,564
14,9214 426 Iﬂkﬂﬁﬂil R3
&, 00 000 &, 000040
3,800,780 o B0, TR
5 3
9067935 8,994,757
213,346 195,462
13,991 066 13,000,034
218 0SR 3,701,800
23,719 13 855
2,203 807 3,725,655
340,113 20,6311
563,595 407 840
189161 | 64,286
203440 0467
|, 423,244 | 284251
7,719,553 1743,494
4,921 360 3,869,149
I8,914.426 18,869,153
DIRECTOR



QUAIM-E-AZAM SOLAR POWER (FRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
MNote e R pees im M e e

Bales il 4 TO% 364 1,900 264
Costoof sales 30 (1037908 (938, 538)
Ciroas profit 1,758 446 3053 476
Administrative expenses 3 (150,952} (131,830}
Corporate social responsibility (expenses) fincome - net 33 (4,116} {4,338)
Cither charges 34 (117,317} {50,486)

{281,415} [ 186,654)
Other income 15 643 856 176,923
Operating profit 4.1 20887 3043095
Annual development plan (ADF) project funds
- amoftization of ADP project funds 16 200,559 663,961
- Expenses incurred during the year 32 (200, 5590 (663, 961Y
Finance cost A (841, 166) (698,548}
Profii before taxation 3,277,721 2,345,147
Taxation 37 {289,125) (f42.810)
Frofil for the year 1,988,595 2,202,337
Earnings per share - Basic and diluted (Rupees) 51 7.84 5.78
The annexed notes from 1 to 53 form an integral part of these financial statements:
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR



QUAID-E-AZAM SOLAR FPOWER (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1023

2023 027
e (Rupees in 0O pmeeem

Profit for the year 2988, 595 2202 3%7
Oither comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability - net of tax 1437 (3,700
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - .
Orther comprehensive income /¢ {loss) for the year 2,437 {3,700
Total comprehensive income for the year 2991 ,IIHL 21 '}E__EE_IH'L

The annexed notes from 1 to 5 form an integral part of these financial statements.
-

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR
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QUAID-E-ATAM SOLAR FOWER (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

023 22
Mot womemensecf Rupees in MM -
CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before fxation 323TRE 2,545,147
Adjustments for items rot involving movement of funds:
Depreciation on property, phant and equipment 5.1 567,231 63872
Depresiation on CHR project assels & 6,142 -
Depreciation on right-of-use assets £ Al 50
Amariization of intangible assets 9 40 139
Exchange loss 34 34,514 15,953
Finance cost 6 Bd3, 164 GYE S48
Employee benefits 206 IS LE TA14
Amortization of ADP project funds 16 {200 559 (663,560
Proviginn for daubtlul other receivables L2 397 =
Provision of WPPF and WWF 4 43069 34,531
et cash flow befors working capital changes 4,604,497 3,00 355
Decrease [ {increase} in current assets
Traude debis 621,381 1,241,386
Contracl assels [343.751) [102,648)
Shari term loans and advances 1721 i zno
Sleart tesm deposits and prepaymels Gl [216)
Diher recxivables 393,405 9z 18T
674,857 1, 274489
lserease / {decrease} in current labilities
Fetentions 133,463 68,767
Trade and other payables 50,170 52,107
|89.6313 21,0
Cash penerated oo operations SALE 9ET d 3207 448
Taxes paid (537.080) (220 B35}
Employes benefits paid (8,217 (12,75%)
Financial charmes paid {304, 784) (651,697
M=t cash E:ncm‘led from operating aclivilies 4 118,504 3505138
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Aufditions o capilal work in progress T (165030103 (243 Z80)
Additions o operating fixed assels 3 (6,714} (11,923}
et cash used in investing activilics (17,017 (255,.203)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lang term financing - repaymsent 01,3546, 224) (1,210,449)
Funds received against ADE projects - net i 394,849
Drividend paid {Z,000,000) { S0, 0007
Met exsh used in financing activities (3,138,505} {1,115, 04EE
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents B13 382 2132335
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3,522,443 1,290,108
Cash and cash equivalents af the end of the year A 335825 ]l.SEIIﬂ-}

The annexed notes from 140 53 form an integral part of theze financial siatements,
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QUAID-E-AZAM SOLAR POWER (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

1

1.2

1.3

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
Status of the Company

Quaid-e-Azam Solar Pewer (Private) Limited ('the Company') was incorporated a5 a private
limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance; 1984 (Now the Companies Act,
2017) on September 16, 2013, The principal activity of the Company is to build, own, operate
and maintain a solar power plant having a total capacity of 100 MW in Lal Sohanra, Cholistan,
Bahawalpur {the main business unit of the Company},

Commercial Operations Date {COD)

In accordance with Central Power Purchasing Agency (Guarantee) Limited {CPPA) letter Mo,
CPPANGIL/GM/CE-IMT-IVIQASPPL/17-38 dated August 7, 2015; the Company achieved
Commercial Operations Date (COD) on July 15, 2015, Natienal Eleciric Power Repulatory
Autherity (MEPRA) has granted generation license to the Company which is valid until
December 30, 2039,

Sale of entire power gencration

The Company has entered into Energy Purchase Agreement (EPA) with Mational Transmission
and Dispatch Company Limited (NTDC) through Central Power Purchasing Agency
(CGuarantee) Limited (CPPA) for the sale of its entire power generation for a period of 25 years
valid till December 30, 2039.

Geographical location and addresses of business units

The registered office of the Company is situated at 3rd Floor, 83A-El, Gulberg 1lI, Main
Boulevard, Lahore, Pakistan. The power plant of the Company is located at following lecation;

Plant Plant address

Sofar Power Plant Quaid-e-Azam Solar Park Bahawalpur, Lal Sohanra, Chelistan,
Bahawalpur,
BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in
Pakistan comprise of:

- Intermational Fimm_.[al Repl}ﬂiﬂg Standards f]FH.S-]I issued h}" the Intermational Accounting
Standards Board { IASE } as notified under the Companies Act , 2017, and
- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,
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2.2

2.3

31

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS.
the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless
otherwise stated under the celevant policy note.

The financial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for
cash Naw information.

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting
standards requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Company's accounting policies and use of cerlain critical accounting estimates. The arcas
invalving a higher degree of judgment, critical accounting estimates and significant assumptions
are disclosed innote 4.3 1.

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the Company operates {the functional currency).
The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional and
presenlalion Gurmency.

APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
TO PUBLISHED AND APPROVED ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS

New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for
the year ended June 3, 2023

The fellowing standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June
30, 2023, These standards, amendments and interpretations are cither not relevant to the
Company's operations or did not have significant impact on the financial statements other than
certain additional disclosures.
Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or

alier)
Amendments 1o IFRS 3 'Business’ Combinations' - Reference to the
conceptual framework January 01, 2022
Amendments to 1AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment’ - Proceeds before
intended use January 01, 2022
Amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilitics and Contingent
Assets' - Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling a contract January (1, 2022

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.
Page - 2 3o



3.2

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting
pericds, beginning on or afier the date mentioned against each of them. These standards,
amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company’s operations or are not
expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial stalements other than certain
additional disclosures.
Effective date
{annual periods
beginning on or

after)
Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ - Supplier
finance arrangements Januaey 01, 2024
Amendments to [FRS 16 'Leases’ - Amendmients to clarify how a seller-
lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions January 01, 2024
Amcndments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Classification
of liabilities as current or non-current Januacy 01, 2024
Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Disclosure of
Accounting Policies January 01, 2024
Amendments 1o TAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Non-curment
lrabilities with covenants January 01, 2024
Amendments o [AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance
arrangements January 01, 2024
Amendments to IAS 8§ 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounling
Estimates and Errors’ - Definition of Accounting Estimates January 01, 2023
Amendments to IAS 12 Tncome Taxes' - Deferred Tax rvelated to Assets and
Linbilities arising from a single transaction Jamuary. 91, 2023
Amendments to [AS 12 ‘Income Taxes' - Temporary exceéption fo the
requirements regarding deferred tax assets and liabilities related 1o pillar
twio income laxes January (1, 2023

The Iollowing new standards and interpretations have been issued by the Intemational
Accounting Standards Board (LASH), which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and
Exchange Commuission of Pakistan (SECP):

IFRS | First Time Adoption of Intemational Financial Reporting Siandards
IFRS |7 Insurance Contracts E"ﬁ:’
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4.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are

set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the vears presented, unless
atherwase staled.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are siated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
identified impairment loss.

Depreciation on properly, plant and equipment is charged to the statement of profit or loss on
the straight line method so as to write off the cost of an asset over its estimated useful life at the
annual rates mentioned in note 5 after taking into account their residual values. The assets’
residual values and useful lives are reviewed, at the end of each financial year, and adjusted if
impact on depreciation is significant. The Company's estimate of the residual value of its

property, plant and equipment as at Tune 30, 2023 has not required any adjustment as its impact
iz congidered insignificant.

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment 15 charged from the month in which
an assel is available Tor use, while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset s
disposed off. The Company assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is
any indication that property, plant and equipment may be impaired. If such indication exists, the
carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed o assess whether they are recorded in excess of
their recoverable amount.

Where carrving values exceed the regpective recoverable amount, assets are written down o
their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss for the year, The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's Tair value less costs
to scll and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is

adjusted in the future periods to allocate the assct's revised carrying amount over its estimated
useful hife.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carmying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow o the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and
maintenance costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the
sale proceads and the carrving amount of the asset is recognized as an income or expense.

[B0e
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4.2

4.3

4.4

Intangible assets

Expenditure incurred to acquire computer software, is capitalized as intangible assets and stated
at eost less accumulated amortization and any identified impairment loss,

Amaortization on additions 1o intangible assets is charged from the month in which an asszel is
acquired or capitalized while no amortization is charged for the month in which the asset is
disposed off. Amortization is charged using straight line method at the rate mentioned in note 9.

The Company assesses at each statement of financial pesition date whether there is any
indication that intangible assets may be impaired, If such indication exists, the carrying amount
of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable
amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable amount, asseis are writlen
down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in the
staternent of profit or Ioss for the vear. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair
value less costs to sell and walue in use. Where an impairment loss 15 recogmized, lhe

amorlization charge is adjusted in the future perinds to allocate the assel's revised carrying
amount over its estimated useful life

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
consist of expenditure incurred, advances made and other casts directly attributable to operating
fixed assets in the course of their construction and installation. Cost also includes applicable
borrowing costs. Transfers aré made to relevant operating fixed agsets category as and when
assels are available for their intended use by the management.

Leases
Right-of-use asseis

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises of the initial amount of
lease liability adjusted For any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus
any initial direct cost incurred and an estimate of cost to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restors the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives
received.

The right-of-use asset is subseguently depreciated using straight line method from the date of
recognition to the earlier of the end of useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease
term. The estimated useful lives of the right-of-use assets ere determined on the same basis as
those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
the impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurement of the lease liability.

b
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Lease linbilities

The lease lability was measured upon initial recognition at the present value of the future |ease
payments over the lease term, discounted with the specifie incremental borrowing rate.

Subsequently lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method.,

The Company recognizes leases as a right-of-use asset and corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the Company, except for the assets under the
Energy Purchase Agreement {(EPA) which are exempted from the applicability of this standard
by SECP through SRO 986(1/2019 dated September 2, 2019, Each lease payment is allocated
hetween the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the statement of profit or
loss over the lease period 5o as to produce a eenstant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liahility for each period. The right-of-use asset is dopreciated over the shorter of
the asset's useful life and the lease term on straight line basis:

Subsequently, the lease liahility is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
methed. 1 is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change
in the rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimalte of the amount expected to be payvable
under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether il will
exercise & purchase, extension or termination aption. When the lease lability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use assel, or

is recorded in the statement of profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-uze azset has
been reduced 10 zero.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value asseis

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its shori-term leases of its
assets (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or fess from the commencement
date and do not conlain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption to leases that are considered of low value, Leass payments on short-term
leases and Teases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with
any periods covered by an option to exlend the lease iT it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or
any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably cerlain not to be
exercised. (R
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4.5

Taxation
Current

Peovision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the vear determined in accordance
with the prevailing law for taxation of income, The charge for current tax is calculated using
prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year if enacted. The charge
for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to pravision for tax made
in previous years anising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

The charge for current tax included in the statement of profit or less is net of amount
recoverable from Central Power Purchasing Agency (Guarantee) Limited (CPFA) as a pass
through item under the terms of Energy Purchase Agreement (EPA) between the Company and
CPFPA.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary
differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the coresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxahle
profit. However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
assel or liability in @ transaction other than a business combination that at the time of transaction
neither affects accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilitics are generally recopnized for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be

available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits
can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the peried when the
differences reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
date of statement of financial position. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the profit and loss,
except in the case of items credited or charged to equity in which case it is included in equity.

The deferred tax liability in respect of temporary differences is not recognized as the future tax
pavmenis on the generation, sale, exportation or supply of eleclricity are pass-through items and
claimahle from CPPA in full and the settlement of these temporary differences in future will
have no tax conseguences for the Company. '[i,,na
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4.6

4,7

4.3

4.9

Trade debts

Trade debls are recopnized and carried at original invoiced amount which is the fair value of
the consideration to be received in future for units sold less provision for impairment. The
Company holds trade debis with the objectives to collect contractual cash flows and, therefore,
measure them subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interast method. Loss
allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross cammying
amount of the assets. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the
Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirely or a
portion thereaf.

Loans, advances and other receivables
These are recognized at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given,
Operating leases

Short term leases are classified as operating leases, Payments made under operating leases (net
af any incentives received from the lessor) are charped to the statement of profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the [ease term.

Impairment
Financial asseis

As explained in note 4.10.4, amounts due from the Government of Pakistan are assessed in
accordance with the provisions of 1AS 39 at cach reporting date to determine whether there is
any objective evidence that one or more events have had a nepative effect on the estimated
future cash flows of these receivables:

The Company recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on linancial assets
measured at amortized cost and contract assets. The Company measueres loss allowances at an
arrvount equal to lifetime ECLs,

Lifetime ECLs are those that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum pericd considered when estimating ECLS i the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the financial assets carried at amontized
cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credil-impaired when one or more events that have
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.

Loss alfowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted [rom the pross

carrying amount of the assets. The gross carrying amount of 4 financial asset is written off when

the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial assct in ils entirety or a

portion thereof. A0
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4.10

4.10.1

a)

b}

Mon-financial asseis

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial zssets, other than inventories and deferred
tax assels, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. IT any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The
recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of 'its value in use and its
fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present values using a pre-fax discount rate that reflects current market

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generafing
Lnit.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the assels or its cash penerating unit
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of
profit or loss: Impaimment losses recognized in respect of cash generating units are allocated to
redece the carrying amounts of the assets in a unit on a pro-rata basis. Impairment losses
recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to
that extent that the asset’s carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the cammying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amaortization, if no
impairment loss had been recognized.

Financial instruments
Financial assels other than those due feom the Government of Pakistan

The Company classifics its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through
profit or loss and at amortized cost. The classifieation depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its linancial assels
at the time of initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ere financial assets held for trading and
financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair valug through profit or loss. A
financial asset is classified as held for trading if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short term. Assets in this catepory are classified as current assets.

Financial assets at amortimed cost

Financial assets al amortized cost are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
pavments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for
maturities preater than twelve months after the reporting date, which are classified as non-
current assets, Thesc comprise of loans, deposits and other receivables and eash and bank
balances in the statement of financial position. Ao
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4.10.2

4. 103

All financial assets are recognized at the time the Company becomes a party 1o the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognized on
trade-date — the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are initially recognized at fair velue plus transaction costs for all financial assets except
those that are carried at fair value through profit or less. Financial assets carried at lair value
through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs-are expensed in
the statement of profit or loss. Financial assets are de-recognized when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Financial assets al amortized cost are measurcd
using the effective interest rate method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss' category are presented in the statement of profit or loss in the pericd in
which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss as part of other income when the Company's right to
receive payments is éstablished. The Company applies simplified approach, -as allowed under
IFRS 9, for measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
all the financial assets. It assess, on 2 forward-looking basis, the expected credit losses
associated with its financial assets carried at amortized cost. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Financial Habilitics

All financial Habilities are recognized at the time the Company becomes a pary to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the statement of prafit or loss,

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the nel amount is reported in the financial
statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amownt and

the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to setile the
liabilities simultansously. Rl
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4,104 Financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan

4.11

4.12

Financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan include trade debts and other receivables
due from CPPA under EPA, and alsa include accrued amounts. SECP through 5.R.0. 67
(13/2023 dated January 20, 2023 has notified that, in respect of companics holding financial
assets due from the Govemnment of Pakistan im respect of circular debt, the requirements
contained in IFRS 9 with respect to application of Expected Credit Losses method shall not be
applicable till December 31, 2024 and that such companies shall follow relevant requirements
of IAS 39 in respect of above referred financial assets during the exemption penod.
Accordingly, the same continue to be reported as per the fellowing accounting policy:

Trade debis and other receivables are recognized initially at invoice value, which approximates
fair value, and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method,
less provision for impaimment.

A provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Company
will ngt be able to collect all the amount due according ta the ariginal terms of the receivable.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptey
or financial reorganization, and defaull or delinguency in payments are considered indicators
that the trade debt iz impaired. The provision is recognized in the statement of profit or loss,
When a trade debt is uncollectible, it is written off against the provision. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts: previousty written off are credited to the statement of profit or loss. I, n a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event accurring after the impairment was recognized (such as an improvement
in the debtor's credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognized impairment loss s
recognized in the stalement of profit or loss,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents arc carricd in the statement of financial position at cost. For the
purpose of statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, cheques
in hand, demand deposits, other short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts ol cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of ¢change in
value and finances under mark-up arrangements.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value {proceeds received), net of transaction costs
incurred, and are subsequently carried at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss over the period of the barrowings using the effective interest method,

Fee paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to

the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the

fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable

that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized a5 a pre-payment for

liguidity services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates. 1300
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Finance costs are accounted For on accrual basis and are shown as accrued finance cost to the
extent of the amount remaining unpaid.

4.13  Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
tima to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those azsets, until such
time that the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs elipible for capitalization.

All ather borrowing / finance costs-are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred,

4.14 Trade and other payalles

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or serviees that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilitics
if payment is due within cne year or less {or in the normal operating cvcle of the business if
longer). [T not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Liabilities against creditors and other costs payable ave initially recognized at the fair value of
the consideration to be paid in future for goods and / or services, whether or not billed to the
Company and subseguently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method,

4.15 Revenue recognition

Revenue shall be recognized when (or as) the entity satisfics a performance obligetion by
transferring a promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transfermred
when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset and thus has the ability to direct the use
and obtain the benefils from the good or service.

- Revenue on account of energy is reoognized on transmission of electricity to CPPA through
the grid system on monthly basis.

= MNon-Project Mizsed Volume is recoznized when these are invoiced, and underlying data i3
available, on monthly basis and the same has been acknowledged by CPPA.

- Ineome on bank deposits and delayed payment mark-up on amounts due under the Energy
Purchase Apgreement is accrued on a time proportion basis with reference to the principal !
amount outslanding and the applicable rate of return,

Other imcome 15 recorded on accrual basis.

ADFP project funds

ADP project funds are recognized where there iz reasonable assuranceé that the Tunds will be
received and all attached conditions will be complicd with. (5.1,
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4.16

$.17

4.18

4.1%

Deferred capital funds

ADP project funds received for purchase of fixed (if operated and maintained by the Company)
assets with limited life are initially recorded as deferred income upon receipt. When the assets
are actually purchased they are capitalized and are amortized as income on a systematic basis
over the periods necessary to match them with carrying value of the related assets, If the assets
arg not retained and handed over to the Government or society, these arc charged to slatement of
profit or loss.

Amortization of ADP Project Funds

ADP project funds of non-capital nature are recognized as deferred income at the time of
their receipt. Subsequently, these are recopnized in the statement of profit or logs to the extent
of the actual expenditure incurred. Expenditure incurred for ADP projects against funds that are
not received, is recognized directly in statement of profit or loss and reflected as receivable
from the Energy Department of Government of Punjab:

Related party transactions

Transactions with related parties are based on the policy that all transactions between the
Company and the refated parties are camicd out at agreed tenms.

Segment reporfing

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relate Lo
transactions with any of the Company's other components. All operating segments’ results are
reviewed regularly by the Company to make degisions about resources to be allocated to the
segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.
The Company has only one reportable segmenl

Contingencies

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a pessible obligation as a result of
past events, existence of which will be confirmed only by the ocourrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the
Company has a present legal or constructive oblication that arises from past events, but it'is not
probable that an outflow of resources embodving cconomic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Ljarah

ljarah in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor / Muj'ir (lessor) are classified as [jarah. Payments made during the period are charged to
the statement of profit or Ioss on a straight-line basis over the period of the ljarah, The SECP
has issued dirctive (vide S.R.O. 431102007 dated May 22, 2007 that [slamic Financial
Accounting Stendard 2 (IFAS-2) shall be followed in preparation of the financial statcments by
companies while accounting for ljarah (Lease) ransactions as defined by said standard. The
Company has adopted the said standard. Boo
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4,200 Dertvative financial instroments

An embedded derivative 15 a component af a hybrid contract that also includes 2 non-derivative
host with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrumentl vary in a4 way
similar to a stand-alone derivative.

When the Company becomes a party to a hybrid contract with a host that is not an asset within
the scope of IFRS 9, the Company is required to identify any embedded derivative, asscss
whether it 1s required to be separated from the host contract and, for those that are required to be
separated, measure the derivatives at fair value at initial recognition and subsequently at fair
value through profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives are separated and accounted for as stand-alone derivatives if these are not
‘clostly related” to the host contract, that is, if their economic characteristics and risks are
different from those of the rest of the contract [T the embedded derivative cannot be measured
separately cither at scquisition or subzequently, the Company designates the entire hybrid
conteact as fair value through profit or lass.

The Company’s tanff, like other power companies, comprises of various price components with
indexations falling within the ambit of embedded derivatives. Such embedded derivatives, as
per [FRS 9 “Financial Instruments®, need to be separated from the host contract and accounted

for as derivatives if economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are not
closely related to the host contract.

The SECP, through its 3.R_0. 986(1)2019 dated September 2, 2009 (in partial modification of
its. previously issued S.R.0. 24/(1)2012 dated January 16, 2012) has allowed companies not to
recognize embedded derivative under IFRS 9 if they have chosen to capitalize exchange
differences as permitted under the notification. Accordingly, the Company has not recognized
embedded derivatives in these financial statements.

However, for reasons explained in note 6, derivatives embedded in the Energy Purchase
Agreement (EPA), have not been separated from the host contract and accordingly have not
been recognized in these financial statements.

4.21 Contract liahilities

Contract lebility is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods or services 0 a customer
for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from
the customer. [f a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services
to the customer, a contract liability 15 recognized when the payment is made or the payment is
due {whichever is carlier). Contract liabilities arc recognized as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract. It alse includes liabilities arising oul of customers’ right to claim
amounts from the Company on account of contractual delays in delivery of performance
obligations and incentive on targel achievements. ﬁ'ﬂ'ﬂ
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4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

Contract assets

A contract asset represents the Company's right to consideration in exchange for goads that the
Company hes transferred to customer that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Company's unconditional right o consideration, ie. only the passage of lime 15
required before payment of thal consideration 15 due.

Deferred liabilitics

The Company operates an’ unfunded gratuity scheme covering all permanent employees who
complete prescribed qualifving period of service.

The latest actuarial valuation for the gratuity scheme was carried out as at June 30, 2023

Projected unit credit method, using the following significant assumplions, is used for the
valuation of this scheme:

- Discount rate 16,23 percent per annum {2022: 13.25 percent per annum);

- Expected rate of increase in salary level 1525 percent per annum (2022: 12.25 percent per
annum); and

- Expected mortality rate as per SLIC {2001-2005) Maortality Table, with one year setback,
Actuarial pains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuanal
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the penod in
which they arise. Past service costs are recognized immediately in income.

Foreign currencies

Transactions and balances

Fareign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the siatement of profit or loss.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, if
any.

Dividend

Dividend distribution to the Company's sharcholders is recognized as a lability in the period in
which the dividends are approved, ADo
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4.27 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required fo settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can he made.
Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect the
currant best estimate.

428 FEarnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EFS) data for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

4.29 Corporate social responsibility reserves and related assets

This represents a reserve created which is allocated for Corporate Social Responsibilities (TSR]
activities under general order (RefiNo/S.R.O983(1)/2009) issued by SECP in 2009 “the
Companies {Corporate Social Responsibility) General Order, 2009" and NEPRA letter no.
NEPRA/Consultants (CSR)LAG-30/31999. Funds allocated for the purchase of fixed assets {if
operated and maintained by the Company/risk and rewards are retained) with limited hife are
initially recorded under the reserves, When the assets are actually purchased they are capitalized
and are amortized as income in statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods
necessary to matceh them with the carrying value of the related assets.

Funds of non-capital nature are recognized in the statement of profit or loss to the extent of the
actual expenditure incurred. Subsequently, the net income/expense is transferred to reserve from
accumulated profit directly in the statement of changes in squity.

4.30 Sharing of carbon credit

As per clause 8.3.3 policy for Development of Renewable Energy for Power Generation, 2006,
the annual carbon revenues realized subsequently shall be divided into the following manner:

- an up front, nominal deduction shall be made from the administrative costs of the joint CER
management mechanism

- an amount not exceeding that required to bring the IPPS™ return an eguity {ROE) to the level
allowed by NEPRA shall be payable to the power produces and
the remaining revenues shall be divided in equal proportion between the IPP and the power

purchaser B
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4.31

a)

b)

d)

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan requircs management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reporfed amounts of assets and liabilities,
income and expenses, The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assels
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. A change
sccounting estimate may effect only the current peried of the staiement of profit or loss or the
statement of profit or loss of both current and future years.

Judgmenis and estimates made by management in the application of approved accounting
standards that may have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with 2
significant risk of material adjustments in the next years as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the uscful lives and residual values of property, plant and cquipment on a
regular basis. Any change in estimate in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the
respective items of property, plant and equipment's with corresponding effect on depreciation
charge and impairment.

Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
recoverable amount s estimated using the criteria given in respective accounting standards to
determine the extent of impairment loss, if any.

Taxation

The Company takes into account the current income tax laws and decisions taken by appellate
authorities. Instances where the Company's view differs from that taken by the income tax
department at the assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of
material nature is in zocordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilitics.

Provision for doubiful receivables

The Company uses 8 provision matrix to caleulate ECLs for trade receivables (other than
receivable from Government] and other receivables. The provision matrix is initially based on
the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (ie., gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. Al every reporting date, the historical observed defaull ratcs
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed. Beo
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Provision and contingencies

The Company reviews the status of all pending litigations and claims against the Company.
Based on its judgment and the advice of the legal advisors for the estimated financial outcome,
appropriate disclosure or provision is made. The actval outcome of these litigations and claims
can have an effect on the carrying amounts of the liabilities recognized at the statement of
financial position date,

Financial instrument
The fair value of financial instruments that are nol traded in the active market is determined by
using valuation techniques based on assumption that are dependent on conditions existing at the

statement of financial position.

Defined benefit plan

Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted by external professional valuer (as disclosed in
note 21.11) for the valuation of present value of defined benefit obhigations. Any changes in
these assumptions in future years might affect unrecognized pains and losses in those years.

poc

Page - 18



AR TiF |

cuyl MR B30T YT 5T = EE il L nmisae sad o 301 uoEdacg

I BEAG . FHSCE [ [ Hus BIFS GLLTLE'S 6k 1L anjes Yo 13
CISTOLET) . TITr0l6s) (6L 6lr  (ECP'9) {goz'1E) [T [oZ0 a8 ©)  \OFF'SC) UGB 20 PRRLEIDYy,
CATRTAEL = CETRTEEL  CERSE ESL BET'IE BLG SELFILED CEA'SE mo7)

CZOT 0E JUN[ pApUs 8L

SEE AnpEa BULLIED Sa00D

r— k —

Tb BL6 ' - P REGE BI0Y 0l BER 2l's GLLELE S TEF 1L M|EA H{00g 130 TR
[ZL Edet 2 {zL8'E95) {sze1) Logal {6eT) [FTiTS) [bpciics) [LLRTE) BB vospElReslag]
TELE . EELET [£'9 165 Frs LTS - ® [ je ) SupIp Py
ER DL D . LR1ROS'0E DE9 GOT ] 1o 84 EOZ DEN O OLEGL A P snpea oo 10 Buasdr)

TE0T 'DE AEN| papus Jusd

sisug aupes Snlamo japy

0B PEL G LLE'GE] i F9'6 SOR'F EEl'E 90 095'% OPTLIE 6 Ot ERT anpes §o0 1@ N
(o ers 1) erl'e [ZRFLES P! DETIE) Tize L) 02" 1T) Ler L) PG arE Y (L0660 uopEEadap paRjranmnIay
TESEEEF] F1E'96]1 BLFTELRI SETaT LT hrd § DET'IT L&l gL E] 0B EaT sy

ETOT 'OE S| paplsn 182

Eigeg anjaa Ehnlumy Ge0in)

R96 PAL LLERL 966 P0G i EED'® gy [ PR LIE b Ui EIT anifun oo 134 Funse
(ELTELS) 21" [1E e} CEOE 1) LE&n') [ZIED RT3 EF16'LEE) T3] FRants LoIE IS
(850 11061 Lo% LOT F . - = TEA'DL CEE ORI d LTy WhRgp AagsuRl ],
41L' - a1e CaRl BOT'® aal G1E BO'E . (1800 1) SUOOIpRY
FHIEE6'S - PPOCECS S QR T | B94 E1'E GLLTERR ESE L (A g8 angea ¥ooq e owadn

EE0Z E BOnp papoa fob g

SiERe] SiRA TULALRD 195

(o0 w saadnyg)
jusmdrnba || asngxy) pus || p@swdinba Liaujgaem  ||pun] pogases watdeiagag
pesos pusasy || Hw.ﬂn“ﬁ _uiﬁ el = FRRA N ey || sampuang 1 pue ey | wo Suppng
FEET IOy

sramdinbe pue joejd ‘Cpadand JapUn pIgISEED Ak Py Surelado jo usases Eg a1 Funap|op sy L

SLASSY dAXLI ONLLVHALO




0z -38eg

R caguadys Dpqisuodsar (riaos meindios o) parso)E 51 si9sse paload 50 ve uonelasldap Uy

"G 10T "suonenEay] BULNRA 1aN Y dEaN
sapun Sunmaw ap, Yanop sweow Bwmeausd osp 51 Ausdwo]) sy Auedio] Ay o S100AI( JO PECEH 20 &g paaoaddy g2 “saateniu
Aupgesuodser (eioos spandioo i 3o ped se Qianoe sng oaEpapun ser Auedmo] agy URYY 1ZRUD) RIAC IRLESIC] 1e OBULT QI puw iqnuef
TR “TRLUTYS ML SFE([IA PUE MBS PUE [qUUEr ([Ewnys Bjylng Weisijor) smay neRg PEPURE RENOR PRpUIRg PRy NSOE ATE(LA
1% soop Fmaq st uonezue(os af] Tasod mjos yEnenp gelung w UONEIERIG)D aFE[[iA PUD J004) PUOFDEO J0 Reloag joild - nees (Zmus
U SIALBINUL JSI0 7 J|gEMSUal JADUR BOTEIGINI9(3 10 UOLR||9SUL pup £ddns ‘uBissp suede apuu gusmied nasaadar sasse 10afud YD

ASMUT 10U A[MERLIND e (a1
{UDINT FLOT EY ZT0T) BOIIE $L o7 s 01 Bununowe oo Sutaty sdowde] apopaut yuswidinba [T ‘2ipang o8N SPUN J0 PIUIRIAL [[UE “IIAIMOT]
spymaaadap Ay 20 [YM (DO DG EF S 1ZT0T) U 062 °ZC 'S 01 Fununowe oo Butwey 519558 apnjaul Sest paxy Funelado al]

"RI0T T AN potEp ST0ZI0 [ 1 ON 9582 0300 ONS JHBPUR UESINE] JO WNod swsadng jo uoneayNow 1pon qeling 31 Jo JEAUILIBALT
quatrpeda] YOS 9 01 2240 POPURY U2aq SEY puE uoissassod 5, AuRdwoy AU U1 10U §] oI TR S O Fununomws 1500 Fiagy S[210a40 U

PUE] PIES U0 M 001 J0 palold Bwmo ] [0S pysI|geIss Sey fmedue:y ay |, andjemeyeq ‘wegstjonD BIwegos
[ET UT PRIENIS PUE] JO S0 QS JO BN UE Yis INA[EMEURE Jied 2|05 WeZy-2-preng) j& pajex] si Aumduzozy auy; o pug| pjoysses| uo Fuppng

CLPLOE ELE ELG

Irl'a ¢E 1301 - atwoaur; (sasuadxa) Anpqisucdsal (#1205 a1R0die]
TLRE0s TET'L9S
60T ¢ D6 ¢ IE sasuadXa FANTLSHATUPY
£99°195 CET'ESS i3 ~ s9[E8 J0.1500)

——-{, o) 91 saadnyg)— 30N
LTI ET0T

'EAO[]0F §1 PATEIO[[E Uang SEY I3k Ay Jof sFmm usieadap ayL

B

&5

e

Eh

Ls

%



71

EMBEDDED DERIVATIVES

The Company's tariff, like other power companies, comprises of various price components with
indexations falling within the ambit of embedded derivatives. Such embedded derivatives, as per
IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments", need o be separated from the host contract and accounted for as
derivatives if economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are not closely related
to the hiost contract.

The SECP, through its S.R.0. 886(17201% dated September 2, 2019 (in partial medification of its
previously issued SR.O. 24/(1)2012 dated January 16, 2012) has allowed companies nat o
recognize embedded derivative under IFRE 9 if they have chosen to capitalize exchange
differences as permitted under the notification. Accordingly, the Company has nol recognized
embeddad derivatives in these financial statements,

The SECF, through its S.R.O. 986(1)2019 dated September 2. 201% partially modified s
previously issued S RO 2471152012 dated January 16, 2012 and granted exemption to all
companics that have exccuted their power purchasze agreements before January 01, 2019 from the
application of IAS 2| 'The Effects of Changes in Foreipn Exchange Rates' to the extent of
capitalization of exchange differences. However, the Company believes that there is no impact on
the Company's financial statements as the Company does not have any foreign currency loan.

023 2022
MNote {Rupees in #00")-———-
CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
This comprises of:
Building
Guest house at plant 71 = 40,850
Plant and machinery
Balanzation - 100EW 1.2 - G034
Solarization under corporate social
responsibility 7.3 - 192,506
- 243 280
Building
Opening balance 40,850 -
Add: Additions during the vear 155,685 40,850
Less: Transferred to operating fixed assets {196,533) -
Closing balance =—= 40,850

This represent varions payments and advances to centractor and consultants for construction and
supervision of guest house located at Quaid-e-Azam Solar Park Bahawalpur. Based on completion
this has been capitalised during the year, Riks
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T2

7.2

T3

131

T2

2023 2022

Nofte ermm e[ [ pEES i QD peeeaae
Solarization - 100kW
Opening balance 0.924 -
Add: Additions during the year 1,008 G914
Less: Transferred o operating fixed assers (10,932} w
Closing balance - 9,924

This represents varous paymenis and advances to contractor and consultants for the solarization of
Bahawalpur Complex Building. Based on completion this has been capitalised during the wear
under the plant and machinery.

Solarization under corporate social responsibility

Opening balanes 192,506 -
Add: Additions during the vear 1,608 192,506
Less: Transferred to CSR project agsets T3 (1%6,114) -

Clasing balance - 192,506

Dresign, supply, installation and testing

DCH Solargiga (Private) Limited 7332 104,862 103,925
Solar Tech (Private) Limited . 91,252 £8,58|
196,114 192 506

This represents payment made to DCH Sofargiga (Private) Limited against design, supply amd
installation of electrification under renewable & other initiatives in energy sector - Pilot Project of
Off-Grid /Poor Grid Village clectrification in Punjab through solar power. The solarization is being
done at Village Bharti Shumali, Bharti Janubi and Dilo Dingo at District Dera Ghazi Khan, The
Company hes undertaken this activity as part of its corporate social responsibility initiatives, as
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

This represents pamyment made to Solar Tech {Private} Limited against design, supply and
installation of electrification under renewable & other initiatives in energy sector - Pilot Praject of
OFf-Grid /Poor Grid Village electrification in Punjab through salar power. The solarization is being
done at Village Basti Mud Saindad Mouza Saindad, Basti Kheersar, Cholistan, Pughlla Shumali,
Janubi and Bhanwar, The Company has undertaken this activity as part of ils corporate social
respensibilily initiatives, as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Boo
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8.1

82

9.1

2023 2022

MNote  —ee—eee (Rupees in M0 )emem- —_
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
Land 8.1 746 T
The following is the statement of right-of-use assels:
Land
Year ended June 30, 2022
Met carrying value basis
Opening net book value TG Ba6
Addition (at cost) - -
Depreciation charge 3l {30 {30}
Closing net boak valus T46 796
Oross carrying value basis
Cost 1,250 1,250
Accumulated depreciation (504 (454
Met book value 746 T9%
Depreciation rate % per annum 4% 4%

The land has been obtained on lease from the Chelistan Development Authority, Government of
the Punjab for 25 yvears. Leaschold land of the Company is located at Quaid-e-Azam Solar Park
Bahawalpur with an area of 504 acres of land situated in Lal Sohanra, Cholistan, Bahawsalpur. The
Company has established Solar Power Project of 100 MW at said land.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Cost
Balance as at July 01, 2,599 2,599
Additions during the vear - -
Balance as at June 30, 2,554 2,599
Amortization
Balance as at Julv 01, 2,501 2362
Charge for the yvear 9.2 46 139
Balance as at June 30, 2,547 2,501
Carrying value 52 e
Amortization rate per annum ( % ) 20% 2004

This represents computer software and licenses capitalized based on the accounting policy of the
Company. (S
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92

140

(0.1

11.1

1.2

Entire amortization charge on intangible azsets iz allocated to administrative expenses.

2023 2022
(Rupees in 000" )eeemmeme

Mote
LOMG TERM DEPOSITS

Long term deposits 10.1 401 4111

This represents security deposit to Pakistan State Ol Limited against monthly purchase of fuel on
credit. The said deposit is refundable 2t the expiry of the respective agreement. This deposit does
not carry any interest or mark-up and is not recoverable within one year. IFRS 9 requires long-temm
noh-interest bearing financial assets to be discounted at the average borrowing rate of the
Company. However, this relates to deposit given to government company with undetermined life
peried for the impact of discounting hence these are not remeasured or do not have any material
impact.

TRADE DEBTS

Secured
Considered good
Central Power Purchasing Agency
(Ciuaraniee) Limited (CPPA)

Gross trade debts 1.1 3,059,327 3,680,708
Accrued income 1.2 54,524 54,524
Net trade debts 3,113,851 3,735,232

These represent trade receivables against sales relating to post-commercial operations date from
CPPA and are considéred good. These are secured by a puarantee from the Government of
Pakistan under the Implementation Agreement and arise in the normal course of business and are
interest free. However, a delaved payment mark-up at the rate of three months KIBOR plus 2% is
charged in case the amounts are not paid within due dates, The mte of delayed payment mark-up

charged during the period on outstanding amount ranges from 12.38% to 24.07% (7.29% to
14.99% in 2022} per annum.

The Company had invoiced 48.301 million K+ h during trial production for the cumulative pericd
from March 28, 2015 till July 15, 2015 record.Jd theough back up metering system installed by the
Company. However, Central Power Purchasing Agency (Guarantee) Limited (CPPA) initially
confirmed only 31.296 million Kwh units based en main metering system for the period fram May
U8, 2015 o July 15, 2015. There was a dispute between the Company and CPPA relating to the
remaining 17 million Kwh energy exported by the company prior to May 08, 2015 as the main
melering  system was not lested by a meter reading commiltee constituted by National
Transmission and Dispatch Company Limited ("NTDC) comprizing one member each of NTDC,
Multar Electric Power Company Limited 'MEPCO and the Company before that date, .
=
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I1.4

135

1.6

Based on a subsequent report issued by the meter reading commitiee, CPPA further approved
10,284 million Kwh units and the same were reinvoiced by the company on December 07, 2015. In
accordance with the suggestion of meter reading committee, the Company and MEPCO requested
CPPA to form a high level inquiry committee comprising of Supenintending Engineers (G507,
Regional Manager M&T, 2nd, MEPCO Multan and XEN M&T, MEPCO, Bahawalpur Division 10
finalize the Net delivered energy in respect of the remaining disputed 6.721 million Kwh
exported by the Company prier to May 08, 201 5.

The dispute resclution committes under chairmanship of Chiel Engineer Technical Services Group
(TSG) WTDC was formed by CPPA on February [4, 2017, The commitice obtained the net amount
of energy delivered to the remote end substations to verify the energy delivered against the dispute
claimed by the Company. NTDC vide its letter No. CETSG/1499-1504 dated February 21, 2019
shared the meter readings of remote end substations during the disputed period. The Company vide
its letter No. QAS-1902:22-01 dated February 22, 2019 accepted the meter readings shared by
MEPCO a5 the difference of vnits was only 1.38% of 6.721 million Kwh. A meeling of Dispute
Resolution Committee ("the Committee”) was held on February 08, 2021 and the Committes
concluded that 6,653 million Kwh units amounting to Rs. 54.524 million (excluding sales tax)
shall be invoiced by the Company to CPPA, accordingly this amount has been recorded as
receivable and corresponding revenue has been booked in the books of accounts in the previous
period. The invaice raited during financial year 2020-21 has not been accepted by CPPA yet as
there iz some information required by CPPA from MEPCO.

2023 22

e { Rupees in 000 - -
Ageing analysis of gross trade debts is as follows:
Meither past due nor impaired 574,885 226,788
Past due but not impaired:

1 to 30 days 568,015 479,268
31 to 90 days T08.812 529,079
&1 to 180 days 223688 1,695,264
181 1o 365 days 171,170 [09.905
Above 365 days a7 281 4 918
2,538,966 1,508,444
3.11 3i351 3,735,232

The maximum amount due from Central Prwer Purchasing Agency (Guarantee) Limited (CPPA)
at the end of any month during the year was Ks. 3,491.238 million {2022: Rs. 4,707 94 million).

Trade debts include an amount of Rs. 129647 million {2022: Rs. 402.98% million) against
Waorkers Profit Participation Fund and Workers Welfare Fund,

Trade rececivables are non-interest bearing, however, subject lo a late payment surcharge and

become due after 30 days of the invoice date. The decrease in trade receivables pertains o recovery
from customers during the year. e
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12,1

122

123

12.4

13

3.1

13.2

2023 022

Note —eeeeme—{Rupees in Q00D }-eeeemnw-
CONTRACT ASSETS
Conlract assels 1.1 1,574 353 1_,|]'3EIEIEIZ|"2
The amounts recognized in the statement of
fMinancial position are as follows:
Mark up on energy invoices 122 82,903 149,154
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 12.3 131,693 92,605
[heomie tax EY | [,107,080 751,801
Worker's Welfare Fund 24 2677 37,042
1,374,353 1,030,602

This represents amount against interest on late payments which iz still not invoiced. The rate of
delayed payment mark-up charged during the period on outstanding amount ranges from 12.38% (o
24.07%4 [(1.29% 1o 14.99% in 2022} per annum

Waorkers" Profit Participation Fund
Undar section 6.3 (a) of Part [V of schedule 1 of the Energy Purchase Agreement, payments made
to Workers' Profit Participation Furd are recoverable from CPPA as a pass-through item,

Worker's Welfare Fund

Under section 6.3 {a) of Part IV of schedule 1 of the Energy Purchase Agreement, paymenis made
to Worker's Welfare Fund are recoverable from CPPA as a pass-through ilem.

This represents the Company's right to consideration for work completed but not billed 25 at the
reporting  date, recognized as per requirements of [FRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”. The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when the nghts become
unconditional. This usually occurs when the Company invaices the cuslomer.

SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Linsecured
Considered good
Advances to employees 13.1 B.452 10,886
Advance o suppligrs 13.4 48 335

8,500 11,221

This represents advances against employes beneflits (gratuity) to Chief Executive Officer
amounting to Rs, 2.321 million {2022: Nil) ‘and various other exccutives amounting to Rs. 5.710
million (2022: Rs. 10.251 million).

The advance provided to the CEQ is neither past due nor impaired. This is unsecured and interest-
free. The movement is as follows: [Bo
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2023 2022
Mote e Rupees in 000"}

Opening balance - 6,179
Addition during the year 3117 -
Deduction during the year (T96) (6,379)
Closing balanee 2321 -

_—l - e

13.3  The maximum amount due From Chiel” Executive Officer at the end of any month during the year
wag R, 3.117 million (2022: Rs. 6379 million).

134 This represents advance to various suppliers against services.

14 SHORT TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Security depasits 14.1 1926 1926
Prepaid insurance 2,954 2622
Cither prepayments 1.5 2012

59409 6,560

14,1 This includes an amount of Rs. 1.917 million (2022: Rs. 1917 million) security deposit against
rented premises. The said deposit is refundable at the expiry of the respective renl agreement of on
vacation of the rented premises.

15 OTHER RECETVABLES

LInsecured
Considered good
Due from contractors (TBEA) T.638 6,179
Dhue from PRA under protest 5.1 230,104 230,104
Sales tax deposited under protest 15.2 25,186 25,186
Income tax deposited under protest 1981 [,981
Mark up receivable - saving accounts . 27,037
Others 2,920 A0
257,829 290,797
Considered douhbeful
Due from related parties 133 597 iy
Less: Provision for doubtful receivable 154 {597) -
- 397
267 829 291,394

e

151 Due from Punjab Revenue Authority (PRA)

This represents Rs. 230.104 million (2022: Rs. 230.104 million) paid by Company under protest lo
PRA as disclosed in note 27.1 (a).
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15.2

153

154

Sales tax under protest

This includes Rs, 2.021 million (2022: 2.021 million) input sales tax which was paid by the
Company on hoteling and consultancy expenses which have not been allowed by PRA. The
Company has filed an appeal in Appellate Tribunal. A favourable outcome is expected.

In addition to this, CPPA has issued a debit note to the Company relating to salé invoice of July,
2019 in the month of October, 2019. However, the Company has glready paid Rs. 23.165 million
against its output tax liability to FBR in the month of August, 2019, The Company has written a
condonation letter to the Commissioner Infand Revenue for the adjustment of this amount, now the
matter is forwarded to the Board (FBR) for final decision. Subsequently, Second Secretary (8T-
Operations) has condoned the time limit and permitted the Company to file sales tax return and
claim the debit note via letler dated August 15, 2023,

2023 2022
Mote —mee—ec[Rupees in 000" )eme—— —
Due from related partics
Considered doubtiul
Khadim-e-Punjab Ujala Program (KPLUP) §: %
Quaid-e-Azam Wind Power (Private) Limited (QWPL) 429 429
WASA | 50 150
597 597
Movement of provision is as follows:
{Opening balance - -
Charge for the year 597 -
Closing balance 597 -

Page - 18
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17.1

17.2

17.3

18
18.1

18.2

18.3

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cheques in hand
Cagh at bank
Loeal currency
Current accounts
saving accounts

Foreign currency
Saving accounts

Mote

17.1 &2

o

2023 2022
mmemmmman (Rupees in (" )----mameue
- Q0,000
320 286
4,309,072 3,432,157
4,309,302 3,432,443

26,433 -

4,335,825 3,522,443

Thizs represents balance in saving accounts in The Bank of Punjab, a related party, which bear
annual markup ranging from 12.23% to 19.50% (2022: 5.5% to 12.25%) per annum compounded

monthly.

Saving accounts include amount sgainst reserve created in accordance with clawse 12,1 of
Collection Arrangement Agreement which states that "the customer hereby irrevocably and
unconditionally undertakes to transfer an amount equivalent to USD 1 million per year after 6th
anniversary of the Commercial Operations Date, in the Asset Replacement Account for the

purposes of maintaining the machinery and Project”.

This represents balance in saving accounts in The Bank of Punjab, a related party, which bears
annual markup at the rate of 12.00% per annum compounded monthly,

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized share capital

2023 2022
Number of ordinary shares

of Rs. 10,000/~ each
GO0, 000 GO0, 000

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

2023 2022
MNumber of ordinary shares
of Rz, 10,000/« each

380,978 380,978 Fully paid in cash

Movement of share capital is as Tollows:

Opening balance
Shares issued during the year
Closing balance
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5,000,000 6,000,000
3 -HUE&?REI 3,800,780
3,809,780 3,809,780
3,809,780 3,800,780
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18.4

18.5

19

9.1

192

19.3

1%.4

19,5

This represents 380,978 (2022: 380,978) ordinary shares of Rs. 10,000 each heid by the Energy
Department, Government of Punjab, and four. shares issued to individuals as nominees of
Government of Punjab.

There 15 no sharcholder agreement For voting rights, board selection, rights of first refusal and
block voting.

2023 2021
Note --—-——{Rupees in 000" )--—--—
COHRPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
RESERVES
Reserves for Corporate Social Responsibility
iniliatives (9.3 213,346 195,462
Movement in this head is as follows:

Opening balance 195,462 199,804
Add; Additicn/allecation during the vear 9.2 22,000 -
Aol Intecest income net of tax 19.3 |03 3712
Add: Income on het metering - MEPCO 195 5,589 =
Less: Transferred to accumulated profit based
on expenditure incurred and depreciation
charped 33 (11.318) {8,050)

{4,116) (4, 338)

Clozing balance 213,346 195 462

This represents reserve created at the rate of 1% of net profits for the year ended June 30, 2022
(2% of net profits for the year from July I, 2016 fo June 30, 2021) as approved by the Board of
Directors in their meeting, which is allocated for Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) activities
under general order (Refno.S.R.O.983(IW2009) issued by SECP in 2009 "the Companics

{Corporate Social Responsibility) General Order, 2009" and reguires 2 disclasure in their annual
financial report.

This represents net af tax profit on savine account in the seme bank sccount in which CSR reserve
is being maintained.

During the year, the CSR reserve amount has been utilized ss stated under note 33 to these
financial statements and presented net of afier tax interest earned on same bank account.

The Company has generated this income through net metering under the SOP for payment af

cxport units regarding net metering under NEPRA Net Metering Regulations 201 5. R
Do
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201

202

21

21.1

21.2

2023 2022
Mote ———-{Rupees in $H'}--—-—
LONG TERM FINANCING

The reconciliation of the carrying amount of loan is as follows:

Secured
Opening balance 5012753 6. 223,202
Less: Repayments during the year (1,3%6,225) (1,210,449
Closing balance 201 I616,528 5002753
Less: Transaction cost (13,196) (26,702)
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities (0,423 244 (1,284.251)

2,180,083 3,700, 80}

This represents the loan availed against aggregate facility of Rs. 11,137 million obtained from The
Bank of Punjab. The key terms are as follows:

Riate of interest per annum 3 months KIBOR +3% per annum
Installments erding on Tuly 16, 2025
Mumber of installments remaining 9 unequal quarterly installments

The loan is secured by first charge over fixed assets of the Company of Rs. 30,883 million along
with hypothecation of all present and future fixed assets of the Company and assignment of project
contracts and receivables. The mark up charged during the year ranged from 12.74% to 22.12%
(2022 ranged from 7.40% to 12.74%) per annumi. The transaction cost amortized duting the year
15 Bs. 13.507 million (2022; Rs. 18.233 million).

DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Employee benefits
Gratuity 21.3 22,719 23,855
General deseription

The scheme provides for terminal benefits for all its permanent employees who gualify for the
scheme. The defined benefit payable to each employee at the end of his or her service comprises of
total number of years of service multiplied b last drawn bagic salary. The Gratuity scheme is a un-
funded arrangement. There is no minimun funding requirement for gratuity benefit scheme. The
gratuity bencfit scheme is a defined benefit  heme,

Annual charge is based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent approved valuer M/S
MNauman Associates as at June 30, 2023 using the Projected Unit Credit method.

The Company faces the fallowing risks on account of pratuity:

Final salary risk - The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than

what the Company has assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary (which will

closely reflect inflation and other macro-econamic factors), the benefit amount increases as safary

increases, [fba
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1.3

214

21.5

21.6  The amounts recognized in the statement of profit or loss:

Digcount rate fluctuation - The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with
reference to corporate bond vields. A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan
liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the current plans’

bond holdings

Demographic Risks: Mortality Risk - The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than
the assumed mortality. This effect is more pronounced in-schemes where the age and service

distribution is on the higher side.

Withdrawal Risk - The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed vidthdrawal
prabability. The significance of the withdrawal risk varies with the age, service and the entitled

benefits of the beneficiary.

Mote
The amounts recopnized in the statement of
financial position are as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation

Payable to ex-employee
Closing net lability

10,509 million.

Changes in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation are as follows:

Opening balance

Clrrent service cost

[mtevest cost

Henefits paid

Benefils due but not paid

Actuarial gain from changes in demographic assumption
Actuarial {loss)'gain from changes in financial assumption
Expericnce adjustments

Closing balance

Current service cost
Met interest cost for the year
Total ineluded in salaries, wages and other benefits

Experience adjustment arising on obligation

Page - 34

2023 2022
e R pees in N e
23,719 23,855
23,719 23,855

The expected charge in respect of defined benefit plan for the year ending June 30, 2024 will be

23,855 25,055
7,902 5714
26106 | B8

(3217 (12:314)

349 -
(338) 245

(2.228) 3,451

23,719 23,855
T.202 5734
1616 1.RRD

518 14014

-0.39% 14 4770
&0o



Mote
1.7 Allocation of expenses recognized
in the statement of profit or loss:
Cost of sales 302
Administrative expenses 31.1

21.8  The amounts recognized in the
other comprehensive income are as follows:

Actuarial gain from changes in demographic assumption
Actuarial (loss)/gain from changes in financial assumption
Experience adjustments

Total remeasurements chargeable to OC]

211} Sensitivity Analysis

2023

2022

—=r—=e=={Rupees in 000" ) ----—

1,396 3,749
7,122 4 865
10518 7.614
649 :
(858) 249
(2,228) 1,451
(2,437) 3,700

Significant assumptions for the determination of the defined henefits obligation are discount rate
and expected salary increase. The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions secwring at the end of the reporting

period, while holding all other assumptions constant,

2110 Year end sensitivity analysis (+ 100 bps) on defined benefit ohligation

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in assumption

Increase in
ASSU M PTon

Discount rate %%
Salary increase %4

wme—— (Rupees in (00")

23,2440
26,746

Decrease in
Assumption

26,672
23,147

21.11 Principal actuarial assumptions at the end of the reporting period {ex pressed as weighled averages)

are-az follows:

Discount rates

Future salary increases
Expected mortality rate
Average duration of plan

Page - 35
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16.25%
15.25%

2012

13.25%
12.25%

SLIC (2001-05) SLIC (2001-05)

T Yeam

9 Years
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22.1

223

23

2%1

232

233

2023 2022
Note e R pees in (M) jreeeeeeee

RETENTIONS
Maintenance retention fund 22.1 87.378 67458
Asset replacement fund 222 252,736 139,192

340,113 206,650

This represents 5% deduction from the totel quarterly payments to the O&M contractor, M/s Thea
Xinjiang Sunoasis Company Limited, agains! operations ond maintenance (O&M) works for the
plant maintenance required under the agreement with the contractor.

This represents 5% deduction from the revised O&M Cost (excluding insurance and security cost),
as approved by the Board and agreed with the contractor, from the quarterly payments to the
contractor against O&M works for replacement of items of property, plant and equipment, in
addition to those included in the engineering, procurement and construction contract ('EPC
Contract’).

In addition to the above, based on the report of consultant, the Company has achieved 76.62%
APR against the benchmark APR of 73.63% and produced excessive energy of 6,221.28 MWh
units. As a result of which, the Company has recorded an expense, of equivalent units of 5,795.16
MWh units, on pro-rata basis in cost of sales out of which 50% has been transferred 10 Asset
Replacement Fund, 25% towards the Company and remaining 25% to the O&M contractor as per

clause 1.4.5 of Schedule -1 for Engineering, Procurement, Construction and Operation &
Mainienance Coniract (EPC and O&M Coniract).

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Payable to contractor 231 152,481 145,736
Payable to consultants 1.504 1.626
Accrued liabilities 24,310 19,505
Withholding tax payable 13,375 7,817
Other Habilities 23.2.&233 61,306 31.012
Retention money 3,883 1,922
Sales tax liahility 72,031 15,791
Payahble to Director General Public Relations 5] 253
Worker's Profit Participation Fund payable 234 163,886 117.257
Worker's Welfare Fund 215 65,354 46,921

563,595 407, 840

This represents payable to O&M contractor, M/s Thea Xinjiang Sunoasis Company Limited,
apainst operations and maintenance (Q&M) works.

This includes an amount of Rs, 16.00 million (2022: Rs, 16.00 million) payable to District Council
Bahawalpur as explained in note 27,1 (k) to these financial statements.

Oither liabilities include Rs. 0.558 million {2022: Rs. 0.844 million) due to executives.
Page - 36 By



234

23.5

23.6

24.1

23.1

2023 222
Mote e (R pees in ) press -

Workers' Profit Participation Fund

Opening balance 117,257 108, 448

Provision for the year 23.6 161,886 115,898

Payment during the year (117,257) {107.089)

Closing balance 163,886 117257
Workers' Welfare Fund

Opening balance 46,921 42 835

Provision for the year 23.6 635,554 44,921

Payment during the year {46,921} (42,835}

Closing balance 65,554 46,921

The Company is required to pay 5% of its prafit to the Workers Profits Participation Fund and 2%
of its profit to the Workers' Welfare Fund. However, such payments will not effect the Company's
overall profitability as these are recoverable from CPPA as a pass through item under the terms of

the Energy Purchase Agreement (EPA).

ACCRUED FINANCE COST
Acerued mark-up on long term loan 24.1 189,161 Iﬁ"’r 286
Movement of acerued finance cost is as follows:
Opening balance 164,286 135,669
Accrued during the yvear 27516 678,146
Paid during the year (802.641) {649, 529)
Closing balance L9 161 164,286
FPROVISION OF TAXATION
Advance income fax 251 1,197,812 567,293
Less: Provision for fxation {1,401,252) (47,760}
{203 4407 (B0 467)

This includes Rs. 68.800 million (2022: Rs. 68.800 million) paid by Company under protest to

FBR as disclosed in note 37,5,

CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM FINANCING

Long term financing
The Bank of Punjab 20 1,423,244

1,284,251

Page - 37
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27
7.1

b)

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingent liabilitics

During the year 2017, the Company was served with a nofice by Punjab Revenue Authority {PRA)
wherein it required the Company to explain the circumstances for not withholding Punjab Sales
Tax on services at 16% under Punjab Sales Taix on Services (Withholding) Rules 2015, on the
contractual execution of EPC works on the aggregate contract value. The Company through its
response to PRA dated May 23, 2017, challenged this notice as being without jurisdiction and also
on the prounds that it is tax exempt under the "Policy for development of renewable energy [or
power generation 2006 of the Government of Pakistan”. However, PRA issued an Assessment
Order dated November 30, 2017 and determined sales tax liability of Rs. 230.104 million and
penalty amounting to Rs. 11,505 million along with default surcharge on payments against local
execution of EPC works. The management of the Company filed an appeal before the
Commissioner (Appeals) against the impugned order, which, through order dated April 23, 2018
decided the case in favor of (PRA).

The Company being apgrieved, filed an appeal on May 23, 2018 before the Appellate Tribunal
Punjab Revenue Authority, Lahore (PRA) to vacate the impughed order. The appeal has not yel
heen fixed for hearing and is pending adjudication. The Company also paid Rs. 230,104 millien
during the year ended June 30, 2018 under protest to FRA without prejudice to any right of appeal
or other remedy available 1o the Company as shown 'Due from PRA' in note 15.1 of these
financial staterments. During the third proceeding financial vear, a writ petition was filed on March
22, 2009, impugning the legality of Rule-6 of Services withholding Rule, 2015 of Punjab Sales
Tax on Services Act, 2012 and the definition of un-registered person as used in these rules, The
writ petition eame up for hearing before the Honorable Lahore High Court on March 25, 201%. The
Honorable Lahore High Court issued notices to the respondents and also stayed appeal proceedings
before the (PRA). The writ is pending adjudication. Based on legal advisor's opinion, the
management of the Company expects favorable outcome due to which no provision has been
recorded in these financial statements.

The Company received a letier from District Council Bahawalpur dated October 28, 2017,
demanding fee of Rs. 218.77 million for map approval of plamt site. The Company filed an appcal
before the Divisional Commissioner Bahawalpur dated December 21, 2017 on the grounds that the
rate of fee for approval of erection of plant may be levied on the building only and not on the open
area and that the caleulation of the assessed fee may be made on the applicable rates in 2014, when
the installation of plant commenced.

The Local Government & Community Development (LG&CD) Deparment of Government of
Punjab vide its letter dated February 12, 2018 directed the Chicl Officer, District Council,
Bahawalpur to charge the rate of conversion foe as well as building plan fee prevalent in the year
2013-2014 and impose a fine on late approval at the rate prevalent in year 2018, The Chairman of
District Council Bahawalpur requested the secretary LG&CD department to reconsider the matter
through letter dated February 16, 2018, The Company recognized a provision of Rs. 16 million n
the financial vear 2017 as per the directions of LG&CD Depariment letter dated February 12, 2018,

j3bo
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d)

In the financial year 2018, the Company approached Law and Parliamentary Department through
letter dated April 23, 2019 to tender an advice on the applicable rates. The advice is still pending.
Based on legal advisor's opinion, the Company’s management cxpecis favorable outcome due to
which no additional provision has been recorded in these Tinancial statements.

An individual, Mr. Munir Ahmed filed a writ petition Mo, 946092017 against Federation of
Pakistan and various other respondents including the Company under Asticle 199 of the
Constitution of Islamic Republic of Pakistan, 1973 (the Constitution} in the Honorable Lahore
High Court ('the Court') as a public interest litigation against the incorporation of various public
sector companies by the Government of Punjab,. The petitioner prayed that the formation of these
companies be declared illegal and wltavires the Constitution on various constitutional grounds and
non-compliances with laws, interalia including not getting proper audits or submission of audited
financial statements to the appropriate Forum.

The legal counsel of the Company has submitted before the Court that the petition should be
dismissed as it is based on frivalous allegations that have not been substantiated by any provision
of law, fact or cogent evidence, the petitioner has come to the Court without exhavsting alternate
remedies available to him under the law and that the Company has conducted regular annual audits
and is in fully compliance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations and subseguently has duly
submitted all relevant reports to the SECP. The last hedring was held on February 28, 2023 This
case is still pending adjudication.

An individual, Mr. Shan Saced Ghumman filed a case against Federation of Pakistan and various
other respordents including the Company through a writ petition No. 112301/2017 in the
Honorable Lahore High Court ('the Couwrt’) a8 a public interest litigation against the incorporation
ol various ptiblil: sector companies by the Government of Punjab. The petibioner prayed . that
operation of these companies should be put under the control and management of the respective
local governments and should be reconstituted in accordance with mandatory provisions of Punjah
Local Government Act 2013, Companies Act 2017, Public Sector Companies {Corporate
Governance) Rules, 2013 and other applicable provisions of law including the issvance of their
audit reports where applicable. The last hearing was held on October 24, 2022, This case is still
pending adjudication.

Proceedings u's 161 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 wers initialed by DCIR for the 1ax year
2014. The DCIR passed order u's 161/205 an<” demand amounting to Rs. 2.139 million for tax year
2014 was created vide said order. The Company being aggrieved filed appeal before CIR (A) and
the case has been remanded back to the department. The Company expects a favorable outcome of
the proceedings. Howewver, if the case is decided against the Company, it may result in tax payable
of Rs, 2.139 million. (June 30, 2022: Rs, 2.139 million). Based on tax advisor's opinion, the
meanagement i5 confident that no adverse inference will be drawn against the Company in these
FEtters. 50
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Proccedings wis 161of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 were initiated by DCIR for the tax vear
2015. The DCIR. passed order ufs 161/205 and demand amounting to Rs. 0.945 million for tax year
2015 was created vide said order. The Company being aggricved filed appeal before CIR (A) and
the case has been remanded back to department. The Company expects a favorable outcome of the
proceedings. However, il the case is decided against the Company, it may resull in tax payable of
Rs. 0.846 million. (June 30, 2022: Rs. 0.946 million). Based on legal advisors opinion, the
management is confident that no adverse inference will be drawn against the Company in these
matters.

Demand amounting to Rs. | 962 million has been created by DCIR vide order w's 11 of Sales Tax
Act, 2001 dated August 30, 2018 against Company. The Company being aggrieved filed appesl
before CIR (A}, CIR (A) remanded the case back to the department. The Company being aggrisved
with order passed by CIR (A) filed appeal before ATIR which is still pending for adjudication, The
Company expects a favorable outcome of the proceedings. However, if the case is decided against
the Company, it may result in tax payable of Rs. 1 962 million (June 30, 2022: Rs. 1,962 million).
Based on tax advisor's opinion, the management is confident thal no adverse inference will be
drawn against the Company in these matters,

Proceedings w's 161 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 were initiated by DCIR for the tax year
2016. The DCIR passed order u/s 161/205 and demand amounting to Rs. 905431 million for tax
year 2016 was created vide said order. The Company being aggrieved filed appeal before CIR (A)
and the case has been remanded back to department. The Com pany expects a favorable oulcome of
the proceedings. However, if the case is decided against the Company, it may result in tax payable
of Rs. 905.431 million {June 30, 2022; Rs. 905.43] million). Based on tax advisor's opinion, the
management is conlident that no adverse inference will be drawn against the Company in this
matter.

During the year 2009 the Company was selected for tax audit of tax vear 2017 through computer
ballating. Proceedings ufs 177 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 were initiated by DCIR for the
tax year 2017. During the current year, the DCIR passed arder ufs 122(4) 1o amend the assessment
order and demand amounting to Rs. 0.079 million for tax year 2017 was ¢reated vide said order.
The Company being agprieved filed appeal before CIR (A) and expects a favorable outcome af the
proceedings.

The contingencies relating to other tax matters have been disclosed under the taxation note 37 1o
Lhese financial statements,

2023 2022
—e—e—e=={Rupees in 000")--——-—
Commitments
Contracts for capital expenditure - 156,634
Contracts for other than capital expenditure 5680416 5,227,301

Commitment for trustee fee, and arrangement

and advisory fee to The Bank of Punjab, a

related parly 200} 3,000
Rehabilitation arrangement $0,980
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29.1

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS
Energy purchase agrecment (EPA)

The Company has entered into Energy Purchase Agreement (EPA) on July 08, 2015 with National
Transmizsion & Dispatch Company Limited through Central Power Purchusing Agency
{(Guararitee) Limited for the sale of its entire power generation. The term of EPA is 25 years.

Implementation agreement (TA)

The Company has entered into &n Implementation Agreement (1A} with the President of Islamic
Republic of Pakistan for and on behalf of the 1slamic Republic of Pakistan {The "GoP™)on July 08,
2015 to design, construct, commission, operate amd maintain approximately 100 MW (net) power

generation complex at Quaid-e-Azam Solar Park, Bahawalpur, Pakistan. The term of the 1A is for
Z3 vears;

Operation and maintenance (O&M)

The Company has entered intc an agreement with Tebian Electric Apparatus Stock Company
Limited {Parent Company) and Thea Xinjiang Suncasis Company Limited {Contractor) for the
operation and maintenance of the plant for Rs. 55.276 million after adjustment of insurance and
security cost,

2013 2022
Mote (Rupees in MY Jmeeea-s
SALES
Sales
Central Power Purchasing Agency (Guaraniee) Limited
Gross Encrgy Purchase Price (EPT) 3407478 4,300,200
Less: Sales tax (800,079 {630,055)
Add: Mark-up on delayed payment from CPPA 29.2 188,965 316,019
4,796,364 3,992,264

Based on mutual understanding with O&M contractor, the Company has assumed responsibility of
insuring its plant from second year of operations (since July 15, 2016) and has reduced the Q&M
apreement by the insurance component. The Company has paid a total premium of Rs. 403,296
million (Second Year of operations: Rs. 77.068 million, Third Year of operations: Rs, 77.068
million, Fourth Year of operations: Rs. 54.72 million, Fifth Year of operations: Rs. 54.72 million,
Sixth Year of operations: Rs. 54.72 million, Seventh Year of operations: Rs. 45.00 millicn and
Eighth Year of operations: Rs. 40.00 million) NEPRA vide its order dated June 02, 2016 has
allowed the adjustment of insurance cost at actual, subject to a ceiling, and allowed to adjust
reference taniff annually as per actual upon production of authentic documentary evidence. The
Company, afier payment of insurance premium for second year to eighth vear, ‘submitted
documentary evidence to NEPRA for tariff adjustiment. oo
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204

The claim of insurance for second year of operations along with another claim of Rs. 483964
million in respect of certain withholding taxes borne by the Company has been rejected by the
MEPRA through order dated November 29, 2006, The Company filed a writ petition on June 03,
2017 before the Lahore High Court against the order of NEPRA which 15 decided on December 10,
2021 and writ petition is allowed to the extent that order dated November 29, 2016 is partially sot
aside in regard to the claim of duties and taxes, with the result that the motion for leave 1o review
filed by petitioner shall be deemed to be pending before it. NEPRA 15 directed to decide the same
afresh expeditiously only to the extent of claim for duties and taxes, if verifiable evidences is
provided by the petitioner. The Company has filed the motion for leave on March 29 2022 1o

rewiewy,

The authority on September 16, 2022 decided the case against the Company and dismiss the
request, Based on the decision the Company filed a review petition Tor modification of COD tariff
dated April 13, 2023 o NEPRA. The authority on April 20, 2023 return the petition in original and
asked QASPL to refile the petition for modification of taciff after addressing the deficiencies.

As per section 9.5 (d) of Energy Purchase Agreement (EPA) late payments by cither party of
amounts due and payable under EPA shall bear interest 2l a rate per annum equal to the Delayed
Payment Rate (i.e. three months KIBOR plus 2%, calculated for the actual number of days that the

relevant amounts remains unpaid on the basis of a three hundred and sixty-five day year), prorated
daily.

The Company has signed an EPA with CPPA (G) dated July 08, 2015. As per the signed EPA,
CPPA {(3) is obligated to make payments in accordance with the given formulae. Under the clause
of “Terms and Conditions of Tariff” the tarifl for QASPL is subject to 0.7% degradation in the
power, however, the actual production of the plant has exceeded the peneration as per the formulae
given. The degradation clause shall not ke applicable when the plant factor remains over 17.50%,
however, inadvertently the Company applied degradation to its invoices and as a result the invoices
generated were of a lesser amount, In view of the above, the management sent a differential
invoice for the yvears 2017 to 2019 for an amount of Rs. 38.570 million. CPPA refused payment
and asked for specific references o the clauses of EPA which were being relied upon by the
Company for the enfitlement [or their claims. Accordingly, these invoices have not been recorded
in the books of accounts.

The Governing Council of Pakistan Bureau of Statistics (PBS) in its 5th meeting in 2014 issued a
policy directives to rebase the Mational Accounts and Price Statistics after every ten wears.
Accordingly, the Governing Couoncil of PB® in its [ Bth meeting held on August 30, 20192 approved
the change of base of Price Statistics from 2007-2008 to 2015-2016. Resultantly, publication of
CPl, Base Year 2007-08, has been discontinued from July, 2020 onwards and publication of
Mational Consumer Price Index (N-CPI} Base Year 2015-16 has been commenced from August
2019 whereas, PBS also published M-CPI data from July 2007 to July 2009,

It is pertinent to mention that the order is not applicable yel on the Company. However, once the
order is applicable, the modified index shall be applicable for future indexations with effect from
October 01, 2020. Based on notification Mo, NEPRASADG(Trfy TRF-100/13382-1 3384 dated
March 10, 2021 an adjustment of Rs. 45.643 million (decrease) was made in the previous financial
statements and Rs, 6466 million (increase) in the current financial statements for change of

indexation, P-‘IH'
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Note.  ——-——{Rupess in 000"
195  Timing of revenne recognition - net
Goods and services transferred at a point in time 4,796,364 3,991,264
19.6  Geographical market
Pakistan 4,796,364 3,992,764
30 COST OF SALES
Operation and maintenance charges 30,1 372,543 277,245
salaries, wages & other benefits 0.2 36,809 35,689
Utilities 451 1,132
Consultancy charges 4,356 TR
Insurance 4.T10 39,140
Travelling and conveyance 2055 I G50
Depreciation ¢n property, plant and equipment 5.1 563,235 561,663
Security expense 17,6600 15,431
Repairs and maintenance T20 375
Vehicle running and maintenance 918 316
Printing and stationery 68 70
Communication charges 2,595 2684
Training and development 1,047 "
Meeting fer charges 186 58
Others 535 154
1,037,918 935,838

301 This represents operation and maintenance cost for the year, The Company hes entered inte an
agreement with Tebian Electric Apparatus Stock Company Limited (Parent Company) and Thea
Xinjiang Sunoasis Company Limited (Contractor) for the operation and maintenance af the plant.

302 Salaries, wapes and other benefits include provision for gratuity of Rs. 3.396 million (2022: Rs
2. 749 million).

3 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits 3.1 81,203 68,263
Rent, rates and laxes L ) 14,4617 13,562
Utilities 4,341 3,888
Advertisement and promotion 470 1,504
Legal and professional charges B.622 I .R00
Auditors' remuneration 313 |, 286 [, 286
Consultancy charges 5463 041

Bpo

Page - 43



2023 022

Mote e Rupees im 00" jomseeees

Travelling and conveyance 8,703 T.571
Repairs and maintenance 31,289 |,542
Printing and stationery 1,137 BR1
[nsurance expense 3,061 135
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 5.1 3,996 2209
Drepreciation on right of use of assets 2.1 1] 50
Amortization of intangible assets 9 46 139
Communication charges 1,597 1,635
Meeting fee/ expense 14.49] 13,194
Securily expense 952 27
License fee D62 412
Training and development 4,291 480
Corporate social responsibility activities - 2010
Cithers 1,403 1,761

I 5‘5‘!931 131,830

31.1  Safarics, wages and other benefits includes provision for gratuity of Rs. 7.122 million (2022: Rs
4 865 mulliom).

31.2  This represents amount charged against operating lease of Head Office building. The Company
applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of its assets (ie., those

leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not condain
a purchase option).

31.3 Auditors’ remuneration

Btatutary audit 1.286 I ‘E'.Eﬁ_

32 EXTENSES INCURRED DURING THE YEAR UNDER
ANNUAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM

Survey and design 321 1,900 148,381
Salar modules and inverters 3232 &0 064 330,541
Installation and testing charges 323 119.068 158,341
Consultants Jr 4 9175 17,649
Others 10,342 8,599
204) 559 663,961
311 Survey and design

Sky Blue Builders - 41,660
Solar Tech (Private)} Limited - 48 034
Zonergy (Tianjin} Company Limited 1210 40,207
Energy Conscious Energy (Private) Limibed = | 8 480
1,910 148,381
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Mote — {Rupees in D00} -
2.2 Solar moduales and inverters

Sky Blue Builders 6517 [ 52,599
Solar Tech (Private) Limited - 0B 274
Zonergy (Tianjin) Company Limited 42 633 52,397
Energy Conscious Energy {Private) Limited II}IQH 2772
i), (464 330,991

32,3  Installation and testing charges
Sky Blue Builders - 71.782
Solar Tech {Private) Limited 79,741 81,537
Lonergy (Tianjin) Company Limited 63,772 2,865
Energy Conscious Energy (Private) Limited 25,555 2.157
119,068 158,341

324 This represenis payments made to various contractors and consultants against site supervision,
design, supply and installation of electrification squipment under various ADP projects during the
year. The Company has taken these initiatives from ADP project funds provided by the
Covernment of Punjab as disclosed in note 16 of these financial statements.

a3 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

(EXPENSES) INCOME - NET
Consultancy services (2,710 (3,146)
Travelling and conveyance (274} {1,195
Depreciation on CSR project assets 51 (B, 142) -
(Mthiors (2,192) x
(11,318} {4.338)
Profit on bank deposits 19.3 1,603 -
Income on net metering - MEPCO 19.5 5,099 -
(4.116) (4.338)
34 OTHER CHARGES
Loss on foreign exchange-net 34.1 54,516 15,955
Company portion/allecstion on other in' ime:
Worker's Profit Participation Fund 34.2 32,192 24,652
Worker's Welfare Fund 34.2 i2877 o879
Pravision for carbon credit 34.3 17,135 -
Provision for doubtful receivables 15.4 397 -
17317 50,486

34.1  This represents the net exchange loss on the liabilitles and payments made towards foreign
contractor and consuliants.

34.2  This represent the current allocation af WPPF and WWF on the Company’s portion of other
income as pass through items are restricted to income from generation only. Boa
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35.1

352

37
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The Company has created a provision for an amount of R2. 17.135 million on a prudence basis for
sharing of carbon credit procced which will be paid once all the legal and administrative
formalities with CPPA are completed.

2023 022
Mote {Rupees in 000 )
OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets
Return on saving accounts 5260474 151,295
Return on short t2rm investment 351 79,734 -
606,208 161,295
Income from non-financial assets
Income from carbon credits 352 29.407 15,456
Others B2 |72
17,548 15,628
fd1 856 176,923

This represents mark up income earmed on term deposit receipts at the rate of 16.35% during the
year, The investment has matured during the vear,

The Company is registered with COM-UNFCCC since February 22, 2018 under Froject Code
10365, During the second crediting year i.¢ from February 22, 2019 to Fobruary 21, 2020, the
Company managed to carn 94,669 (2022: 95,237) carbon credits (CERs), which have been issued
in. January 2023, The Company approached different parties for the sale of CERs in international
market and made agreement with Emergent Venture International PTE Limited for the sale of
current volume of CERs only. During the yvear the Company has sold current volume of CERs for
Rs 29407 million (2022: Rs. 15.456 million).

FINANCE COST
Mark-up on long term loan 827516 678,146
Transaction cost 15,345 20,088
Bank charges 305 314
E43E!ﬁ5 698i543
TAXATION
Current 371 (174,094} (81, 185%
Super tax 372 (61,445) (19.103)
Prior adjustment 173 (53,587} {42,518)
(289,126) (142810}

Ag per clause 6.3 (a) of Part IV of the first schedule to the Energy Purchase Apgreement, all laxes
payable on the gencration, sale, cxportation or supply of electricity are pass-through items -and
shall be claimable from CPPA in full. Based on normal and super tax (2022: Nommal Tax) (ACT),
the total provision for taxation is Rs. 908.303 million {2022: Rs. 510.947 million)} of which Rs.
672.784 million (2022 Rs. 410.654 million), included as receivable from CPPA in Aaole 12 a5 a
pass-through item, represents normal tax / ACT on profit before tax excluding income on bank
deposits and liquidated damages from contractor, l‘_h—;;;.
Page - 46



371.2

37.3

374

375

The remaining provision of Rs, 235.539 million (2022: Rs. 100.292 million) representing normal
tax / ACT on income from bank deposits and liquidated damages from contractor, which may not
be claimable from CPPA as a pass-through item, not being construed as directly related to the
generalion, sale, exportation or supply of electricity

This shows super tax (@ [0% on the taxable income for the tax year 2023 imposed through Finance
Act 2023.

Prior year adjustment for 2023 represents difference of provision recorded and tax return filed
during the year for tax yvear 2022.

Tax charge reconciliation

Mumerical reconciliation between average effective tax rate and applicable tax rate:

023 2022
8 o

Applicable tax rate 20 9
Tax losses and credits not recognized/other adjustments - {5.07)
Taxes claimable as pass through items {20.20) (17.87)
Prior year (ax 0.0 0.02
Average effective tax rate charged to profit or

loss 582 6.08

Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue ("the ACIR') through order dated May 29, 2008 in
proceedings under section 122(5A) of Income Tax Oudinance, 2001 (TTO7 relating to non-
payment of taxes on income on bank deposits for the tax year 2015 imposed a tax liability of Rs.
78.160 million on the Company including net principal liability of Rs. 64.379 million along with
default surcharge of Rs. 13.781 million and created a net demand of Rs. 47.126 million after
adjustment of taxes already paid. Subsequently, the Company filed an appeal before Appeliate
Tribunal Inland Revenue on November 01, 2018. Appellate tribunal through order dated August

30, 2019 decided the case in favour of the Company. Therefore, provision for taxation was
reversed in the prior years.

Later on Movember 29, 2019 Commissioner Inland revenue filed a reference in Lahore High Court.
The reference came up for hearing beforu the Honorable Court on December 3, 201% and the Court
issued a notice to the tax payer and power of attorney has been filed on January 27, 202{. The
reference is pending adjudication. ﬁm
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With respect Lo proceedings under section 122(5A) of ITO relating to Tax years 2016 and 2017,
The ACIR through orders dated May 29, 2018 imposed tax liakility of Rs. 160.873 million and Rs.
334.435 million respectively by disallowing tax credit under section 65B of ITO as claimed by the
Company in its tax return, The Company paid 25% of these tax liabilities during the year ended
June 30, 2018 under protest and preferred appeals before the Commissioner Inland Revenue
{Appeals), on the grounds that the tax credit under section 658 of ITO should be allowed. The
Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) through order dated October 17, 2018 decided the cases
sgainst the Company and maintained the impugned order. Subsequently, the Company [liled an
appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue on November 01, 2018. The liability was already
provided by the Company in the financial statements of relevant financial years on prudence basis.
During the prior yvear, the Company discharged liability of Rs. 277.80 million (Tax year 2016: Rs,
112,10 million and 2017: Rs. 165.70 million). The Appellate tribunal through order dated August
30, 2009 decided the case against the Company. The Company has filed references before the
Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahare on November 22, 2019, The references came up for hearing
before the Honomable Lahore High Court on December 0%, 201 9. The Hon'ble Courl issued notices
to the respondent department. The references are pending adjudication.

In addition to above, through a separate order dated May 30, 2018, the ACIR. impased super tax aof
Rs. 45,533 million relating to Tax year 2017 for which a provision was recognized by the
Company in the finaneial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018 and payment was also made
to FBR. The Company had prefermed an appeal before the Commissioner Infand Rewvenue
(Appeals) and has also filed a writ petition before Honorable Lahore High Court on July 23, 2018
apainst legality of super tax. The CIR (Appeals-1V), Lahore dismissed the appeal vide her order
Mo, TOWA-1Y dated December 24, 2019,

Further, the Honorable High Court announced the order in open court on February 24, 2020 and
dismissed the writ petition relying on its own judgement date February 28, 2020 in ICA # 134758
of 2018. Later on, the Company has filed writ petition before the Supreme Court of Pakistan

against this order which is pending adjedication. However, the Supreme Court has granted leave
on Movember 26, 2020,

Federal Govt. through Finance Act 2022 retrospectively imposed Super Tax on high caming
persons under Section 4C of Income Tax Ordinance 2001 for the Tax Year 2022 Being an
affectee, the Company filed a writ petition in Lahore High Court. On January 19, 2023 Lahore
High Court passed the order and directed. FBR 1o allow the Company to file its return excluding
the tax under section 4C of the Ordinance .ubject to depositing of post dated cheque of differential
amount. Later-on on February 06, 2023, the Supreme Court of Pakistan issued an order to pay
5080 of Buper Tax (Rs. 56.136 million) under protest to certain respondents. Based on the order by
the Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Lahore High Court recanted its relicf order on 16th February
2023 ordering all petitioners 1o pay 50% Super Tax within 7 days. The Company paid Rs. 56.136
million on February 21, 2023 On June 27, 2023, Lahore High Court passed & judgment and
decline all the petitions and declare super tax as valid. In July 2023, the Company paid the
remaining 50% of the Super Tax amounting to Rs: 56.136 million. EL
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Comparison of tax provision against tax assessments

Excess/ Tax assessment/
Years {(Short) Tax provision tax refurn

e (Rupees in 00D} ———

2021-22 (53.587) 454,732 508319
2020-21 (16,514) 164,103 IR0GLT
2019-20 - 422242 472343
2018-19 - 293,773 293,773

As at June 30, 2023, as per the treatments edopted in tax retumns filed that are bazed on the
applicable tax laws and decisions of appeliate authorities on similar matters, the provision in the
financial statements for income tax is sufficient as there are strong grounds that the sasd treatments
are likely to be accepted by the tax authorities.

The deferred tax liability of Rs. 3.456.274 million (2022: Rs. 2.238.472 mullion) in respect of
temporary differences has not been recognized as the Future lax payments on the generation, sale,

exportation or supply of clectricity are pass-through items and shall be claimable from CPPA in
full and the settlement of these temparary diffecences in future will have no WX consequUences on

the Company. H%ﬂﬂ
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38.1

38.2

383

39

3.1

()

The details of compensation paid to key management personnel are shown under the heading of
"Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executive (note 48)", There are no transactions
with key management personnel other than under their terms of employment.

key management personnel are those persons having authority and respomsibility: for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the entity, The Company considers all members of its
management eam, including the Chiel Executive Officer and the Directors to be key management
personmnel.

All transactions with Govt. of Punjab and its owned entities (the Bank of Punjab) are not disclosed
as the management is of the view that it 15 impracticable to disclose such transactions due to the
nature of the transactions. The Company is exempt from the disclosure requirements of the related
party tranzactions and outstanding balances with the government and other entities which are related
party being owned by the same government.

TINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Tinancial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of linancial risks: market risk (including currency
risk, other price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and lguidity risk, The Company’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of Anancial markets and seeks to minimize
petential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Company's finance depariment under policies approved by
the Board of Directars. The Company’s finance department evaluates and hedges finuncial risks.
The Board provides principles for overall risk. management, as well as policies covering specific
areas such as currency risk, other price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. All
treasury related transactions are carried out within the parameters of these policies.

Market risk
Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument shall
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company 18 exposed to currency risk amounting to Rs. 71.654 million (2022: Rs. 32,2010

million) {(payable to contractor and consultant) arising due to transactions in the US Dallar and the
Euro. Currency risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognized asscis or [iabilities
are denominated in a currency that is not the Company's functional currency,

At June 30, 2023 1f the Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the USD with all other
variables held constant, the impact on profit for the year would have been Rs. 12.092 million (2022:
Rs. 2.395 million) lower [ higher mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses / gains on translation

of USD-denominated financial assets and labilities. ]&Jo
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(i)

(iii}

At June- 30, 2023 if the Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the Euro with all other
variables held constant, the impact on profit for the year would have been Rs. 0.05 million (20221
Rs. 0.03 million) lower { higher mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses / gains on translation
of Euro-denominated financial assets and liabilities.

The following significant exchange rates have been applied during the year:

Average rate Reporting date rate
2023 021 2023 2022
USD o PRR 246.55 L81.00 287,10 2006.00.
EUR to PKR 265010 201.58 31427 21575

Other price risk

Oither price risk represents the risk that the fair value or Tuture cash Mows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate becauwse af changes in markel prices {other than those arising from interest rate risk or
eurrency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrament or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the markel.
The Company is not exposed to equity price risk since the Company has not invested in equity

securities. The Company is also not exposed to commodity price risk since it does not hold any
financial instrument based on commodity prices.

Interest rate risk

This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company has significant long-term
interest-bearing liability, The Company's interest rate risk arises from long term borrowing.
Bomowing obtained at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

If interest rates at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher / lower with all other variables held
constant, finance cost for the year would have increased / decreased by Re, 0.71% million (2022: Rs.
| .580 million) respectively.

2023 2022
Carrying amount
----- (Rupees in 000} ———-—
Finaneial liabilities/{ Assots) Effoctive rates
Variable rate instruments:

Long term financing 12.74% to 22.12% 1616528 5,002 753
Bank balances 12.25% to 19.50% {4,335,825) {3,432.443)
MEL eXpOSUrE (712.297% 1,580,310
Ros
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39.2

Cazh flow sensitivity analyvsis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 bhasis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased [
{increazed) loss for the vear by the amounts shown below, This analysiz assumes that all other

variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2023,

Profit or loss
100 bp 104 bp
inerease decrense
As at June 30, 2023
Cash flow sengitivity - Variable rate financial liabilities (7,193) 7,093
As at June 30, 2022
Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial liabilities 15,803 (15,803)

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on (loss) / profit for the
year and assets / liabilitics of the Company

Credit risk

Credit nisk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for
the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. The carrving amount aof financial assels

represents the maximum eredit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
was a5 follows:

2023 2022

—mmmeme— (Hupies in (M) —eeeeeee -

Long term deposits 401 401
Trade dabis 3, 113851 3,735,252
Contract assets 1,374,353 1,030,602
Short term deposits 1,926 1.926
Shart term loans and advances 8452 110,886
Other receivables {1,155 34,120
Bank balances 4335825 3,522 443
B.B45 00G3 BA3S610

B R
Credit quality of financial assets

The eredit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be ‘assessed by
reference to external credit ratings or o historical information about counterparty.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when the changes in economic or industey factor similarly affect
group of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Company's
total credit exposure. The Company's portfolio of Onancial assets is limited and is exposed to
concentrations of credit risk as the financial asset are held with a limited nomber of institutions.

Roo
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Trade debis - considered good

Trade dobts mamly represents receivable from Central Power Purchasing Agency (CPPA), a
Government owned entity.

013 2022
remremamaes (Rupees in 0007 ~—nmmme
The aging of trade receivable at the reporting date is:

Meither past dug nor impaired 574,885 226,788

Past due but nol impaired:
1 to 30 davs 568015 479,268
31 to 90 days 708,812 529,079
91 to 1RO days 223,688 1,695,264
8] to 365 days 171,170 109,905
Above 365 days BGT 281 | 694,928
2,538,966 3,508,444
3,113,851 3,735,232

Based on the puarantee secured from the Government of Pakistan under the Implementation
Apgreetnent, the Company believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of trade
dehtors past due as-some receivables have been recovered subsequent to the year end and for other

recervables there are reasonable ground to believe that the amounts will be recovered in short course
of time.

Bank halances

The credit quality of Company’s bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit
rating agencies as follows:

Rating 2023 1023

Short term Long term Agency (Rupees in (00")

Bank of Punjab (BOP) Al+ A PACRA 4,335,825
Rating 2027 20212

Short term Long term Agency {Rupees in 000"

Bank of Punjab (BOP) Ak AA PACRA 3,432,443

Due to the Company's business relationships with the banks and after giving due consideration to
their strong financial standing, management does not expect non-performance by the banks on their

obligations to the Company. Accordingly, the credit risk is minimal. l ap
&
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39.3 Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk 1z the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty m meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities,

Prudent liguidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. The Companys approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure that, as far as possible, it always has sufficient liquidity to meet its
lizbilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable loss
or risking damage to the Company's reputation.

Management monitors the forecasts of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents on the bagzis of
expected cash flow, This is generally carried out in accordance with practice and limits set by Lhe
Company. The Company's liguidity management policy involves projecting cash flows and
considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet its liabilities, monitoring balance shesat
liguidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements, and maintaining debt financing
plans. Following are the contractual maturities of financial labilities, including interest payments:

Carrying Contracival Less than 1 Bciween I
Over 5 years
Acnound cash Mow FEar nnd 5 years
T ————— .;.--__l;kwg T T =
2023
Long term loan RH L Tl 4338272 2038172 1A%4,360 -
Trade pnd other payublos TR, 185 47R, 159 d78. L% - =,
Acerucd finance cosy 189,161 PR 161 189,161
Reteribon 340,113 340,113 340,113 . -
4623, 5. 845 135 3,211,375 1,634 360 -
Imz2
Long term loan 5AF12,753 526,585 2012760 4,513,625
Trade and other payables 6,232 36,232 364,232 - .
Acerued finance cost | 61,286 164,286 (RSB0 = =
Retarinng 205, 650 2046650 25, 65D - -
5,747,021 7260 553 2747 QR 4513625 =

40  FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements
approximate their fair values, 'Fair value isthe price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most advantageous) market at the
medsurement date under current market conditions (ie an exit price) regardless of whether that price
15 directly observable or estimated usine another valuation techniaue.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly
traded derivatives, and trading and available-for-sale sccuritics) is based on quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Company is the current bid price. Thess instruments are
included in level 1. ﬁu,_:,
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Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments thal are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which
maximize the usc of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable. the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3:  1f one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable markel data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equily securities.

There were no financial instruments held by the Company which are measured at fair value as of
June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022.

Transfer between levels of the fair value hicrarchy are recognized at the end of the reporting period

during which the changes have occurred. However, there were no transfers between levels of T
value hierarchy during the year.

Poo

Fage - 56



L5~ Amy

*[FURILCRL S R i i Aoy ioedimog ) o) S0 g 213y un sansd SRuncg asp i st o pedys
saop i Fugues RRumus] Sucns Sy o8 UsIHEpEIe: sap TeE mge pur ssuedmmunos sy e sdigsuoneps ssswsng Aupues Fuop s fusdusay s o0 ang

o
= T LFl s ILBLILS
. BETERl QRTHOL
- {59'u0T QEERIT
LT boi TECHIE
- ESSEI0E  ©RLTIOS
- - ITEEL & g DITSEE &
- TEFCib E = The LIl
= - = 01 0%
- WEE - ore'| .
8 - GRR'TI = nEEnl
. % £ Tow'nen' | EoRt0gn’|
- TIEEL™ FEECELE
- - Lk - 1
= 3 e LInF  IBERiIF
- TI9r6RE | (21681 -
- - - £11°arE EL1'0FE
- GEI'ELE GA1'8LF -
- ATCRIOT REUtOINE
e —— . - T rhh TG 575 B
STHSIL b TEEEEELE
Z - - E5I'1L - FEOCII
- - 0TE'| 6]
T " ZSE'R = Tir'E
= = ESiri - CoERLE'l
ISREIE'E - IFEILE
- - 10r - il
{100 w1 snmdngg)

LALA R

R | TRe]

uy pazp s

I [aa] rere L 1 S|

anjen 3E

1580 PrTILIALT |8
SJET [O]IWEUL]

FI
iz
EE
ot

il
7l
¥l
Al
tl
LI
i

Ll
k£l
bl
£l
Tl
11
il

Ry

L2 U pAIDY
Hanptmay
sapqednd =0 pie gLl
Tujsupuiy uns Fue
1803 PEEIIGAUR IR SHEEGT]| [rIAURUL

=AU e ATy pue yEn

FaaaakERE B

wjnxhap Wi woyg

SICETAPE PUT SURD] ULA] MOYE

RRETE TN D

Y Fpei]

spEadap mmy fuon

FEOD PATIIE0NNE |R EiG fE [RIAEE

SRR [TIAUTUL
LTOL '(NE SB[ ¥ 5
FIHSIFLE B (RS - dajead] fRsuTig) |0 siaipg-ugy

LB S sy
SUDqIEI
Rajquind daipo pey ape)
Furaueuny oy fue
PS03 PATIIANINE [ S0 QE] |EseE) g

SEMRE U P
ErAlana 110
Sisolap e U
HRIUEAPT PUT SUDD | AT L0
EEST JRnUe)
LR L et
sasoden woa Bsoy
MY PR R L SR, [P L]
EaEvE |vpane] g
LT 0 aunp e ey
FRUALETIEEE [EIEUL] « UDGE [REVOREL J0 109 FIS-E0)

AMODILYDS Al SLANAHLSND TYEDN YT

"1k

ir



42

4

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Board's poliey is to maintain a strong capital base s0 as to maintain investor, creditor and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors
monitor the return on capital, which the Company defines as net profit after taxation divided by
total sharcholders’ equity. There were no changes to the Company's approach to capital
management during the year and the Company is not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net deb divided by total capital
emploved. Net debt is calculated as long term financing. Total capital emplayed signifies equity
a3 shown in statement of financial position plus net debt.

2023 2022
------- {Rupees in ) ——-—eeeeee
The proportion of debt 10 equity at the year end was:

Long term finances 3.616,528 5,M2,753
Met debi 3,616,528 3,012,753
Share capital 3,800,780 3,809 780
Reserves B967.9315 8,994,787
Total equity 13,777,715 12,804 567
Total capital employed 17,394,243 17,817,320
Gearing Ratio I & 8%

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Board of Dircctors has overall responsibility for establishment and over sight ol the
Company's risk management framework. The executive management team is responsible for
developing and monitoring the Company’s risk managerment policies. The team regularly meets
and any changes and compliance issues are reported 1o the Board of Directors through the audit
committee. The audit committee oversees compliance by management with the Company’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to the risks [aced by the Company.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding fipures where neceszary, have heen rearranged for the purpose of comparison.
However no significant rearrangement or reclassification has been made during the year ended
June 30, 2023 except as follows for berter presentation.

Statement of financial position Amount
Reclassification from Reclassification to (Rupees in 0040)
Trade debts Conlracl asscis 149,154
Other receivables Contract assels 851,448
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46

Statement of profit or loss

Reclassification from Reclassification to

Crther income Sales
Salaries, wages and other benefits Meeting fes/ expense
Salaries, wages and other benefits  Ulilities

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Salaries, wages and other benefits

Travelling and conveyance
Communtcation charges
Training and development

Salaries, wages and other benefits  Others
Consultancy charges Legal and professional charpes
2023
Numbers
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Number of employess at June 30
Permanent
Head office 18
Plant 12
Average number of employees during the year
Permanent
Head office 21
Plant 13

Amiount
(Rupees in 0040)

316,119
12,570
104
2,214
"0
480
(3)
1,070
2022
Mumbers

23
13

23
11

The number of employees as at year end was 30 (2022: 36) and average number of employees

during the year was 34 (2022: 34).

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the vear for remuneration,
including all benefits, to the Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company are as

fallows:
Chicl Executive L T Exciulives
0T ol I0ORN ol e ] .'.!-I'I'B_J i 18 )
mrmrpenia !-'I._u.-n-bu T LT ] e —
Shect teem cmqdnyes henellis
Bdanaperial feemunorathon 13526 10, L HG = 14,4 1R F R
Linilnags 34 - - - - -
Bonae 4, nga 1674 - - B.8010 L]
pedicol expenses 157 1@ - - 1M
Beeting fo - - 13,423 12333 =
Cnhers - = - a £
PR kR MR 12,423 12,533 TI R TeE. G432
Chibel Execiplive Ihrecinrs Exvcoiives
T02a Z0TZT %ﬂ!ﬂe g e g 20T ZFIL
== Rmprees in ihomsspilescecm
Posd e lagnment benelit
Fxponnes incorrad in respeen ol gradisity : = 2 z A dd b [FRIE
__-EE.I':'EI-‘:I 01879 12,423 12,533 X 5490 2T 156
MMumiber af persondal i [ i 13 & ]
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46.1

46.2

463

47

47.1

48

48.1

49

The Company has [1 (2022: 13) directors who have not received any remuneration and other
benefits, except aggregating fee for attending miectings amounting to Rs. 12,422 mallion (2022:
R=. 12.533 million).

Certain executives of the Company are provided with Company maintained vehicles.

The meeting fee 15 paid to non-executive and independent directors,

2023 2022
MWH MWH
CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
Actual capacity per Hour 104 | B0
Benchmark energy for the year 153,300 153,300
Actual energy delivered for the vear, a5 e
acknowledged by CPPA — 160961 | 64,787

Cutput produced by the plant is dependent on the load demanded by CPPA-G and plant
availahility,

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES AND EQUITIES TO CASH
FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Equity Liabilities

Dividend Financing Total

(Rupees in thousand)

Balance as at July 01, 2022 - 5.012,753 5,012,753
Dhvidend announced 2,000,000 - 2,000, 0
Dividend paid (2,000, 0000 - (2,000
Repayment . (1.396225) (1,396,225)

Balance as at June 30, 2023 - 3,616,528 3,616,528

There is o non-cash transaction during the vear, however, dividend payment ineludes expenses
amounting to Ks. 19.020 million paid by the Company on behalf of the Government of Punjab
and the same amount has been deducted from the payment of dividend,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS

All significant transactions. and events that have affected the Company's financial posilion and

performance during the year have been adequately disclosed in the notes to these financial
statements. Rane
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EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

50.1  The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed an interim cash dividend for the year
ended June 30, 2023, of Nil (June 30, 2022: RBs. 3,937.24 per share amounting to Rs. 1,500
million). The respective effect of the transaction is incorporated in the Statement of Changss in
equity during the year.

0.2 There are no significant adjusting or non adjusting event afler the reporting date requiring
adjustment or disclogure in financial statements except elsewhere disclosed in these financial
slalemenls.

51 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

2023 2022
Profit for the year Rupees in thousand 2,988,595 2.202.337
Weighted averape number of
ordinary shares Mumber 180,078 JB0.978
Earnings per share Rupees 7.84 5.78

51.1  Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any
convertible instrument in issue as at June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022 which would have any
efféct on the camings per share if the option o convert iz exercised.

52 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION OF ISSUE
These financial statements were authorized for issueon [ 0 SEF A7 by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

53 GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the niearest rupee in thousand unless otherwise stated.

Rc
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER IRECTOR
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QUAID-E-AZAM SOLAR POWER (PVT) LIMITED

GOVERNMENT OF PUNJAB
PROXY FORM
[ of in
the district being a Member/ Director of the Quaid-e-Azam Solar

Power (Pvt) Limited (QASPL), hereby appoint

of as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on
my/our behalf at the 10th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of QASPL to be held on the
26t day of October 2023 and at any adjournment thereof.”

Signed by me this day of October, 2023

(Signature of Appointee)
(Signature of Appointer)
Witness 1: Witness 2:
Signature Signature
Name Name
CNIC No. CNIC No.
Address - Address

3" Floor, 83-A, E-1, Main Boulevard, Gulberg - III, Lahore.




